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Corporate Information
NEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Sung Wai (Deputy Chairman)
(retired on 21 September 2012)
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph
(resigned on 31 May 2012)
Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong (appointed on 6 July 2012)

Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony (appointed on 16 October 2012)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Tong Leung Sang
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Mr. Zhang Xianlin
Mr. Lum Pak Sum

Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse
COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Leung Lai Si, Rosena

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China CITIC Bank International Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

REGISTERED OFFICE
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chim Kim Lun Ricky (“Mr. Chim"), aged 43, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 15 October 2008 and
Chairman of the Company on 19 December 2008. Mr. Chim holds
a Bachelor Degree in Arts from the University of British Columbia
in Canada and has over 15 years of commercial, industrial and
investment experiences.

Mr. Chim was an executive director of Huscoke Resources Holdings
Limited (stock code: 704) for the period from September 2007 to
2 September 2010, Yueshou Environmental Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1191) for the period from May 2007 to November 2009,
Hengli Properties Development (Group) Limited (stock code: 169) for
the period from June 2007 to December 2008, Bel Global Resources
Holdings Limited (stock code: 761) for the period from April 2007
to November 2008, Karce International Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 1159) for the period from August 2007 to April 2009
and Bestway International Holdings Limited (stock code: 718) for the
period from 17 September 2007 to 23 April 2013. These companies
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Chim is the son of Mr. Chim Pui Chung, who is the sole
shareholder of Golden Mount Limited, a substantial shareholder of
the Company.

Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 56, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 6 July 2012. Mr.
Cheung has over 30 years' extensive experience in the securities,
finance industries and corporate management; especially specialises
on merger and acquisition, and corporate finance. He was a founder
of Hong Kong Hani (Holdings) Limited and has been its director
since October 1995. Mr. Cheung is a director and a responsible
officer of Hani Securities (H.K.) Limited, and is licensed by the
Securities and Futures Commission under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to carry out
regulated activities Types 1, 4 and 6.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Cheung was appointed as the Indonesia Project Manager of
the Company on 29 September 2010 to manage, supervise the
iron sand project exploration, exploitation and sales. Mr. Cheung
was subsequently appointed as Commissioner of the Company’s
Indonesia subsidiaries, namely PT. Dampar Golden International, PT.

Asia Resources Sejahtera and PT. Asia Resources Patra.

Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong Anthony (Mr. Yeung”), aged 49, was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 16 October
2012. Mr. Yeung has studied and lived in the United Kingdom for
20 years, where he read Architecture in London and was awarded a
Bachelor of Arts Degree by the University of Westminster. Mr. Yeung
is a director and responsible officer of Hani Securities (H.K.) Limited,
and is licensed by the Securities and Futures Commission under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) to carry out regulated activities Types 1, 4 and 6. He is also a

member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.

Mr. Yeung was appointed as the Indonesia Project Manager of the
Company on 29 September 2010 to manage, supervise the iron
sand project exploration, exploitation and sales. Subsequently on
25 April 2011, Mr. Yeung was appointed as the President Director
of PT. Dampar Golden International, a subsidiary of the Company
in Indonesia. He is also the President Director and director of the
Company’s two Indonesia subsidiaries, PT. Asia Resources Sejahtera
and PT. Asia Resources Patra respectively. Mr. Yeung is also director
of the Company’s Mongolia subsidiary Khuderbold LLC.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Tong Leung Sang (“Mr. Tong”), aged 63, was appointed as
a non-executive director of the Company on 19 November 2010.
Mr. Tong had over 40 years’ extensive experience in the banking,
securities and finance industries. He served Bank of China Group,
Hong Kong for over 30 years. He had been an economic researcher
of the Bank of China Group from 1970 to 1989 and the executive
director of BOCI (known as Bank of China Group before 1998)
Securities Limited and BOCI (known as Bank of China Group before
1998) Commodities and Futures Limited from 1989 to 2002. He
joined Luen Fat Securities Company Limited in 2003 and has become
the executive director and chief executive officer of Luen Fat Futures
(HK) Limited since 2009.

Mr. Tong was also an alternate committee member of the Listing
Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the
year of 1996-97, a committee member of The Hong Kong Stock
Brokers Association for the year of 2001-02, a committee member
of the membership committee of the Hong Kong Securities Institute
from 2000-2004 as well as the Chairman of the Hong Kong
Securities Professional Association (“HKSPA"”) from 1996-2001. He
has been appointed as the Permanent Honorable Chairman of the
HKSPA since 2004.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Xianlin ("Mr. Zhang”), aged 59, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 16
December 2008. Currently, Mr. Zhang is the executive director of
China-No1.com. Mr. Zhang graduated from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology with a Master Degree in Business
Administration and a Doctor Degree in Management. He is a
Chinese certified public accountant and senior accountant. During
the period from 1974 to 2007, he served in the senior management
positions in China National Aviation Corporation (Group) Limited
and the Civil Aviation Administration of China. Besides, Mr. Zhang
was a general manager in China National Aviation Company Limited,
a director in Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Limited, the Chairman of
the Board of Supervisors in Air Macau Company Limited and the
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors in Air China Limited (stock
code: 753), a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
Mr. Zhang was also a non-executive director of Cathy Pacific Airways
Limited (stock code: 293), a company listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong, during the period from August 1997 to May 2005.
Mr. Zhang has over 30 years of extensive experience in enterprise
finance and investment management.

Mr. Lum Pak Sum (“Mr. Lum”), aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on November
2010. Mr. Lum holds a Master Degree in Business Administration
from the University of Warwick, United Kingdom and a LLB (Honor)
Degree from the University of Wolverhampton, United Kingdom.
He is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, United Kingdom. Mr. Lum has over 20 years’
experience in the financial field, the money market and capital

market.

TMERERARAT « —T—=FFH

EEREREERBER

BYFHUTES

REMEE ([REE]) 595 R=ZZTEN
F+ZATABEZEARRRIEIENTT
EFoREEBHAERFI S A (China-Not.
COM)MITEF - RELEZEREFREKX
2 NEINEEETSMREESELE
- RAFPEFMEHMES RS FAT R
—NtOFE_ZTLFHE  HEEFE
fmzE (KB ERAFRFPEEAMERZHE
BREEBA LN REEBERMMES
RARBEE BEMEEARAFTNES R
PIMERDBERRAREEEEE  UARFE
B Mz IR B IR A A (RO HRSE: 753 —
MR BB LM AR EEEERF-
RAENRR—NANEENREZZTZTRFH
AEREFERMZEBR AT (BRH KR :

293 —ERBEMRA LT 2 AR) ZIEH
TEFE - REEANCERERKREETEETH
BAEBIF 2 EL=KER-

MERKE ([MEE]) 525 RZZE—F
F+—ABZEAEARRBULIERITES -
MEEREREEFABINERELT S
i1 X # B University of WolverhamptonZ &
BEBBN -FRBEABTESHMATRE
BT ARETMAEERTE - MEER
R BEMSREARTIGHEB B205K&



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEERE

Mr. Lum was an independent non-executive director of Grand
Field Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 115) for the period
from July 2004 to May 2008, China Star Film Group Limited (stock
code: 8172) for the period from September 2005 to December
2008, Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (stock code: 8046) for the
period from June 2007 to November 2008, Energy International
Investments Limited (stock code: 353) for the period from
September 2005 to June 2011 and Bestway International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 718) for the period from March 2010 to 31
May 2013.

Currently, he is an independent non-executive director of Waytung
Global Group Limited (stock code: 21), Radford Capital Investment
Limited (stock code: 901) and Karce International Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 1159). These companies are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also an independent director
of Asia Green Agriculture Corporation, a company trading on the
Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board in the United States of America.

Mr. Kwok Hong Yee Jesse (“Mr. Kwok"), aged 60, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 8
November 2011. Mr. Kwok is a solicitor and notary public and
is the sole proprietor of Messrs. Jesse H.Y. Kwok & Co. with
substantial previous working experiences acting as solicitor of the
Supreme Court of Hong Kong. He obtained his degrees of Bachelor
of Laws (LLB) and Master of Laws (LLM) in Civil Laws from the
Peking University in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Kwok was
appointed as a Temporary Magistrate between December 1994
and March 1995, and a Temporary Adjudicator of the Small Claims
Tribunal in July 1998. He is also a Panel Arbitrator. He is also a
member of the Law Society of Hong Kong, the Law Society of
United Kingdom, Singapore Academy of Law and is the Counsel
Member of the Hong Kong Society of Notaries.

Mr. Kwok was an independent non-executive director of China
Infrastructure Investment Limited (stock code: 600), a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, during the period from
25 August 2005 to 31 August 2012.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chao Zhengxiang (“Mr. Chao”), aged 60, joined the Group
in 1997. Currently, he is the director and the general manager of
Siping Ju Neng Medicine Industry Co., Ltd. (FIFEEEEZEBFR D
A)) . Mr. Chao graduated from Chinese Language and Literature
Department of Siping Normal College. He is a senior economist
and had been recognized as Top Model Worker (% & 8hH &5)
of Siping City. He has over 40 years of extensive experience in

corporate operation and management.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chao was the secretary to the party
branch of Siping City Pharmaceutical Factory ( P4 F M &%) , the
deputy director of Siping City Light Chemical Bureau ( PU-F &4
T /@), the secretary to the party branch and the director of Siping
City No. 2 Chemical Factory (P95 Z{L T/ ) , the secretary to
the party committee and the director of Siping City Pharmaceutical
Factory (PUSF & %48 ) , the director of Siping City Kangle
Pharmaceutical Factory (P9 R RL 25 ) and the director of
Siping City Huatai Pharmaceutical Factory ( PUF 7 2% 2 B S5 % )

Mr. Toni Nurdianto Prabowo (“Mr. Toni Nurdianto”), aged 47,
appointed as Project Manager of PT. Dampar Golden International
(the subsidiary involving in iron sand trading business in Indonesia)
on 14 February 2011 and Director on 18 March 2011. Mr. Toni
Nurdianto holds a Bachelor Degree in Mechanical Engineering from
Sepuluh November Institute of Technology Surabaya, Indonesia,
certified as Project Management Professional from Project
Management Institute, and has over 18 years of experiences in

various industries in Indonesia.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEERE

Before joining the Group, he was a Project Manager and Manager of
Facilities Operation & Maintenance of INCO Indonesia, Nickel Mine
Company that listed in Indonesia Stock Exchange for the period
from June 2003 to February 2011. He has been Project Management
Development Team Leader for PT. Dok & Perkapalan Kodja Bahari,
the Stated Owned Enterprise of Republic Indonesia for the period
from May 2000 to March 2003, and was a staff for Secretary of The
State Minister of State Owned Enterprises of Republic of Indonesia
for the period from August 1998 to May 2000.

Ms. Mamik Hartini (“Ms. Hartini”), aged 36, graduated
from Satya Widya Tourism High School, in Surabaya, East Java,
Indonesia, was appointed as Office Manager of PT. Dampar Golden
International (the subsidiary involving in iron sand trading business

in Indonesia) on 15 February 2011.

Before joining the Group, Ms. Hartini has been the Sales &
Marketing Manager of PT. Intil and Development Tbk for the
period from March 2007 to February 2011; and as Administration
Assistant of Magnussen Company for the period from May 2006 to
February 2007. She was Assistant Sales Manager of a 4 stars hotel
at Somerset Surabaya Hotel & Serviced Residence, an International
Hotel Chain of The Ascott International for more than seven years
up to May 2006.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognizes the importance of maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with an aim to protect the
interest of shareholders.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
(formerly the “Code on Corporate Governance Practice”) contained
in Appendix 14 (the “Code”) of the Listing Rules including those
revised code provisions which became effective on 1st April 2012.
During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company complied with
all applicable provisions of the Code for their respective applicable

periods except for the deviation as stated below:—
Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer ("CEQ") should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and CEO of the Company should be clearly
established and set out in writing. Details of deviation of this code is

explained in the relevant paragraph headed under ‘CHAIRMAN AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER"” below.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's business strategic decisions and

performances.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises three Executive
Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Kai

Kwong and Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony; one Non-executive

Directors,

Director, Mr. Tong Leung Sang; and three Independent Non-
executive Directors, Mr. Zhang Xianlin, Mr. Lum Pak Sum and Mr.

Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse.
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Corporate Governance Report
b EERRE

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are
persons with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of
accounting and appropriate expertise. They provide strong support
towards the effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities
of the Board. Each Independent Non-executive Director gives an
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company and
the Company considers these directors to be independent under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Details of Directors’ attendance records during the year ended
31 March 2013 are set out below:

ARBZFIUIFATEZT RN G HRIE LHE
BEEMEEXER UYREBEEFERANHEZ
AL - BEHEZTSEUETHEHRBREREME
FRHBARAIFF - BBULIFNTEELESE
VUEBFARARFMELER ARERE
ZEEFRELETMARRAFINMETIEE LA
+o

EEEREE-_T—=F=A=+—HIEF
EHFCHEFBTET
Meetings Attended/Held

HERE/BTEERE

Audit Nomination Remuneration

DIRECTORS AGM/SGM Board  Committee = Committee Committee
REBF
xg/

= REHRAE Eze ENZEE REZEE FMzEE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky ERlatE 212 5/5 1/1 212
Mr. Chan Sung Wai BREEEE(WZ2—=F

(retired on 21 September 2012) NAZ+—RRMAE) 0/1 212
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph EEREE(RZE—=F

(resigned on 31 May 2012) TA=+—-BEAL) 0/0 0/0
Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong RECEEE (WZ2——F

(appointed on 6 July 2012) TARBEZME) 212 33
Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony BRBEE(RZZ—=F

(appointed on 16 October 2012) TATABEZA) 0/0 33
Non-executive Director FYTES
Mr. Tong Leung Sang BERE 212 5/5
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES

Directors
Mr. Zhang Xianlin REMEL 22 3/5 33 171 22
Mr. Lum Pak Sum MR EE 212 5/5 33 1/1 212
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse PEREE 212 4/5 33 1/1 212
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Apart from regular board meetings of the year, the board of
Directors will meet on other occasions when a board level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors receive details of
agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in
advance of each board meeting. The board of Directors has reserved
for its decision or consideration matters covering corporate strategy,
annual and interim results, Directors’ appointment, succession
planning, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and capital
transactions, and other significant operational and financial matters.
Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the board
of Directors to the management include the preparation of annual
and interim accounts for board approval before public reporting,
execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the
board of Directors, implementation of adequate systems of internal
controls and risk management procedures, and compliance with

relevant statutory requirements, rules and regulations.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICE

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and CEO
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and CEO of the Company should be clearly established and set out
in writing. The roles of the chairman and the CEO of the Company
were not separated and were performed by the same individual,
Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky throughout the year ended 31 March

2013.

The Directors meet regularly to consider major matters affecting
the operations of the Group. As such, the Directors consider that
this structure will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Directors and the management of Group and believes
that this structure will enable the Group to make and implement
decisions promptly and efficiently.
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TERERRE

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors of the Company including Independent
Non-executive Directors, are appointed for terms of three years. In
addition, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting pursuant to the Bye-laws of
the Company.

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, Directors appointed to fill
casual vacancies shall hold office until the next following general
meeting and can be eligible for re-appointment at that time.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are continually encouraged to update themselves with
legal and regulatory developments, and the business and market

changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

All Directors are requested to provide the Company with their
respective training records pursuant to the Code.

During the year, the Directors have confirmed their participation in
appropriate continuous professional development activities by ways
of attending seminars or self-reading.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and the Chairman of the

Board, and is currently chaired by Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse.

Its primary objectives include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified
to became Board members, assessing the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors and making recommendations
to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-

appointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the fiscal year
ended 31 March 2013.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 March 2013.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Under the code provision B.1.1, the Company should establish a
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authority and duties. The role and function of the Remuneration
Committee include the determination of the specific remuneration
packages of all Directors and senior management of the Company,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, such as any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment, and make recommendations to the
board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors.
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EERERRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company currently comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors and the Chairman of the
Board, and is currently chaired by Mr. Zhang Xianlin.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2013.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include:

1. To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and

senior management;

2. To review the remuneration package and recommend salaries,
bonuses, including the incentive awards for Executive Directors

and senior management; and

3.  To ensure no Director or any of his associates is involved in

deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed the
existing terms of the appointment letters of the Directors with
reference to the factors including salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company and desirability
of performance-based remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
considers that the existing terms of the appointment letters of
the Executive and Non-executive Directors, including Independent
Non-executive Directors are fair and reasonable. Details of the
remuneration policy of the Directors are set out on page 42 of this

report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three Independent

Non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. The minutes
of the Audit Committee meetings were kept by the Company
Secretary. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group. The Audit Committee held three meetings
during the year ended 31 March 2013.

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed with
management the accounting standards and practices adopted by
the Group, and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the interim report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2013.

AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

March 2013,

remuneration paid to the Company's auditors, Messrs. HLB Hodgson

During the year ended 31 under review, the

Impey Cheng Limited, is set out as follows:

Services rendered

"lr'rsA

#Ell:l

NAIZERZEEBRE BB UINTE

E

N

BRERERBFARYD %“éﬁ QE% EX P
PPN

&W*B?T %‘JV %Vi/\aﬁf‘ﬁ
= =-A=1T-BLEFERRT=

FA - BRZEECHEEEENAKER
MzEtEAREN WHEZ NEPEE
EUHHERER (BRAKEZFHRER
BE_T— zizﬂer AILFEZEE
PR TSERR) TR

B AN =

K EBZ®#E-2—=#=A=+—A1
FEN BRHARIRBAEGEHAES
FARATZMeBIINT:

Fees paid/payable

Fr 12 4L AR 3% BN ERER
HK$'000

FAT

Audit services 1% B R 7% 450
Non-audit services (note) IEZBR (H:E) 300

Note: The audit committee is of the view that the auditors independence
was not affected by the provision of these non-audit related services
during the year ended 31 March 2013.
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TERERRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the accounts for
the year ended 31 March 2013, the Directors have adopted suitable
accounting policies which are pertinent to its operations and
relevant to the financial statements, made judgements and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable, and have prepared the accounts on
the going concern basis.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s system of

internal control.

To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations and
to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the
Group emphasizes on the importance of a sound internal control
system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group's risk
exposures. The Group’s system of internal control is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure in

operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.

The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets and
identification of business risks. The Board is satisfied that, based on
information furnished to it and on its own observations, the present
internal controls of the Group are satisfactory.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities and
has implemented a practical and effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority, a
sound cash management system and periodic review of the Group’s
performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

EEYER

EEMARSEEERESVBREEZUE
W& ANEBERA T REAREE 2 B R
Mo MERBE_T—=F=HA=1+—H1E
FECERER EFSCHAEASBEEBR
BERREU AESHRE FEBER
GEZHE REF WEIRFELERER
BIARE o

REREEIE R A bR B

EESRAEEARAZAMMEREHE-

BEFSEBEASE IR URBRHFSHES
ERERAR - AEER TR T ARBEEIESIE
ZEZW IR ARAR R & E E e S 0] sk
2R RNEE 2 NEEESIE T B ERE
E?@ ERBR M S 1 R IR A IR B W FEB R

B ERBREREESERRZERNAR
ETT%%%ﬁaﬂﬁax

ABEEHNEDHERSRHELTR &
ZHEER EATRERARREEEEE
L#pEHRR EFERBEAELRER2E
BRAT 285 HAKEE R <A BBEE
REN R

AEEHNBN EEMNEREARXKL

BRZRAR YCER-—BHERATRAX
ZEEHE - BB E R ERER

REFzZBREERHE UEHEXEZES
EEeTHEARE Z EEETRA -

18 Asia Resources Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2013



Corporate Governance Report

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the system
of internal control and is of the view that the system of internal
control adopted for the year ended 31 March 2013 is sound and is
effective to safeguard the interests of the shareholders’ investment
and the Company’s assets.

COMPANY SECRETARY'S TRAINING

During the year ended 31 March 2013, Ms. Leung has received no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to refresh her
skills and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings can
send a written request to the Board or the Secretary of the Company
to request a Special General Meeting ("SGM").

The written request should be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company at Unit 04, 34/F., Bank of America Tower,
12 Harcourt Road Central, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

The written request must state the resolution(s), accompanied by a
statement of the matters referred in the proposed resolution(s) and
signed by the shareholders concerned.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company will convene a SGM within twenty-one (21) days of the
deposit of the request. The actual SGM shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of the written request.
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TERERRE

Making Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholder can send a written request to the Board or the Secretary

of the Company to make proposal(s) at a shareholders’ meeting.

The written request must state the resolution(s), accompanied by a
statement of the matters referred in the proposed resolution(s) and

signed by the shareholder concerned.

The written request should be deposited with the Company at its
principal place of business at Unit 04, 34/F., Bank of America Tower,
12 Harcourt Road Central, Hong Kong, at least fourteen (14) clear

days before the date of the shareholders’ meeting.

The request will be verified with the Company's share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the proposed

resolution(s) in the agenda for the shareholders’ meeting.
Procedures for nomination of Directors for election

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director are available on the Company’s websites at
http://www.asiaresources899.com or http://www.aplushk.com/
clients/0899asiaresources.

AMENDMENT TO CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2013, there were no significant
changes to the Company’s constitutional document save for those
approved at the Annual General Meeting held on 21 September
2012 to pass a special resolution approving the amendments to the
Company Bye-laws to conform to the provisions of the Listing Rules
and the CG Code (including the amendments thereto). The updated
consolidated version is available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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TtERERRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS HRERZE®

The Company discloses relevant information to shareholders through RARBBARNG 2 FREVBHRE 1
the Company’s annual report and financial statements, the interim BEAERBRFRBAFRE (IRRABFERg])
report, as well as the Annual General Meeting (“AGM"). The AGM BEMABEMTRE-REBFRGAES
allows the directors to meet and communicate with shareholders. EEHRFRAERER-

To further promote effective communication, the corporate website BE—SHBBER BB AAGREAT
is maintained to disseminate Company announcements and other Wb UEBRSFREBEREREARAZA
relevant financial and non-financial information electronically on a R EMEEEEIET B E -

timely basis.
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3R B B B AR R A4

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), and
present herewith to the shareholders of the Group the annual report
and audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended

31 March 2013.
RESULTS OF THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the turnover of the Group was
mainly generated from its principal business of pharmaceutical
operation, amounting to approximately HK$111,957,000 (2012:
HK$113,586,000), representing a decrease of approximately 1.4%
as compared with last year.

Correspondingly, the gross profit of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2013 dropped to HK$20,455,000 (2012: approximately
HK$24,239,000). Gross profit margin decreased to approximately
18.2% (2012: 21.3%). As a result, and after taking into account
of the impairment of the remaining carrying value of the Mongolia
Iron Mine, the Group recorded a loss attributable to the Company's
shareholders of approximately HK$197,967,000 (2012:
HK$154,276,000).

loss of

Basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2013
was HK$1.28 (2012: basic and diluted loss per share of HK$1.01).
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TRBEREEERBAWRERTH

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year ended 31 March 2013 was a difficult year for the Group,
owing to further decline in the selling price in intravenous fluids,
resulted in the Group’s gross profit from pharmaceutical operation
decreased. With continuous effort to improve operational efficiency
and reduce cost, as well as increase in volume of production; this
segment recorded a decrease in loss.

The iron sand trading business in Indonesia was still at the stage of
trial production. Fruitful result was obtained as the grading of iron
sand screened during the trial production was satisfactory and can
be exported to China. The Group expects the first batch of iron sand
for export will be in the second half year of 2013.

For the Mongolia Iron Mine (“Mongolia Mine”) business, the Group
has received a letter from the Ministry of Environment and Green
Development of Mongolia in December 2012, and the legal advices
from Mongolia legal advisors, that the Mongolia Mine is located
within the protected area of Shudtiin river, forest front and the
water source basin of Mongolia adopted by resolution number 194
of 2012 of the Government of Mongolia.
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3R B B B AR R A4

As at the date hereof, no further notification or advice from the
Government of Mongolia concerning the iron mining licence was
received by the Company. The operating activities of the Mongolia
Mine are temporarily suspended in order to minimise the expenses
to be incurred.

During the year under review, the Group has successfully recovered
HK$40,988,000 of the outstanding debt of HK$64,000,000 in
relation to the disposal of Skyyield Holdings Limited, debts of
which had been fully impaired last year. The recovered amount was
recognised as reversal of impairment loss recognised in respect of
other receivables. The consideration of settlement was by means
of share transfer of the entire issued share capital of Conmet
International Real Estate Limited, and through its interests in the
WOFE, legally owns the PRC properties in Hangzhou. In accordance
to the settlement agreement dated 3 August 2012, the outstanding
debt of HK$23,012,000 will be settled by the debtor within twenty
four months from the date of the share transfer agreement by
means of cash or other means as may agree by both parties from
time to time. The management is now seeking the potential use
of the said properties, including leasing or self use to run our own

business with good returns.

Apart from consolidating the existing operations, the Group has
started short term investment in listed securities in Hong Kong in
order to enhance the cash management for better use of cash in
hand. We will also explore opportunities for business diversification
in order to improve its earning base. We aim at seeking to invest in
business with high growth potential and good returns.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year (2012: nil).
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TRBEREEERBAWRERTH

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Segmental Analysis
Pharmaceutical Operation

For the year under review, the Group’s pharmaceutical product
business continued operating under the pressure of price
competition. Nevertheless, the Group kept exploring ways to boost
sales through expanding its direct sales team, and had tried its
best to explore and seize the opportunity to increase direct sales
to hospitals or their agents. Under the circumstances, the revenue
of the pharmaceutical product business could be maintained at a
stabilised level and most of the impacts of the decline in sales price
had been mitigated by the increases in sales volume. As a result, the
turnover of pharmaceutical products recorded only a slight decrease
of 1.4% to HK$111,957,000 as compared to HK$113,586,000 last

year.

Thanks to the tight control over production cost, selling and
distribution cost as well as administrative cost, this segment
recorded reduction of loss to HK$13,733,000 from the loss of
HK$24,316,000 last year.

Looking forward to next year, the Group will continue to focus on

improving the product quality and lowering the production cost of

the factory in Siping.
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EEHREEEEBFRETH

Iron Ore Mine Operation
Mongolia Iron Mine

For the Mongolia Iron Mine (“Mongolia Mine”) business, the
Group has received a letter from the Ministry (the “Ministry”) of
Environment and Green Development of Mongolia on 24 December
2012, notifying the Company that the Iron Mining Licence is located
within the protected area (“Protected Area”) of Shudtiin river,
forest front and the water source basin of Mongolia adopted by
the resolution of the governor, the borders of such Protected Area
were determined by the attachment to the resolution number 194
of 2012 of the Government of Mongolia. The board subsequently
sought advice from its legal advisors and received legal opinions
on 31 December 2012 and 11 January 2013 were advised that
accordingly to the provision of a new law on “Prohibition of mining
and exploration activities in river heads and banks, water basins and
forests” the Iron Mining License is subject to the new law and shall
be cancelled since the Mongolia Mine is located in the Protected

Area.

As a result of the above mentioned environmental issue, apart from
an impairment of HK$129,613,000 during the six months ended 30
September 2012, a further impairment of the remaining carrying
value of Mining Right totalling HK$53,820,000, was recognised in
accordance with the valuation report of an Independent Valuer.

As at the report date, no further notification or advice from the
Government of Mongolia concerning the Iron Mining Licence
has been received by the Group. Under the circumstances, the
operating activities of the Mongolia Mine are temporarily suspended
minimising the expenses to be incurred as well as the loss of this
segment. The Company is also considering disposing the Mongolia
Mine to potential risk-taking investors who are interested in the

mine.
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Indonesia Iron Sand Trading

During the year under review, PT. Dampar Golden International
(“Dampar”) has obtained mining licenses for both the IUP OPK for
Sales and Transportation and IUP OPK for Processing. For all intents
and purposes Dampar is now a licensed mining company under
the Laws of the Republic of Indonesia. During that period, Dampar
has continued to refine its processing techniques, streamlining
its production methods, enhancing its logistics, including but not
limited to the implementation of a water recovery and recycling
system to satisfy environmental requirements. To date, Dampar
is now moving ahead into full production from its previous 2
production lines, and will commence construction of its remaining
10 production lines as soon as practicable. It is envisaged that the
remaining 10 production lines will be fully operational by the end of
the year. More production lines are already in the planning for 2013
and 2014, and additional machineries are already on order at the

date of this publication.

Each production line, at its maximum productivity, is capable of
producing approximately 20 metric tons of iron sand per hour.
The iron sand grading will be graded to around 54% Fe (iron). Full
specification of the iron sand is available from Dampar’s website:
www.DamparGolden.com. First export shipment of approximately
30,000 metric tons is expected to commence towards the end of
August 2013. It is the intention of Dampar to sell and export the
iron sand by CIF (Cost, Insurance and Freight) rather than FOB
(Free On Board) which most other competitors from Indonesia are

quoting.

TMERZERARAT « —T—=FFH

NE#YES
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With reference to the Company's announcement dated 7 June
2012 regarding the Indonesia Mining Law No.7 of 2012, Dampar
continues to work closely with the IUP holder PT. Indo Modern
Mining Sejahtera regarding the availability of the export quota
during the grace period, and Dampar’'s management do not see
any hindrance relating to Dampar’s capability to sell and export the
iron sand during the grace period. Furthermore, Dampar continues
to plan and make preparations for the construction of a smelter
which will enable Dampar to produce iron with grading to 94% Fe
(iron) for export as required under the Indonesia Mining Law No.7 of
2012.

Overall speaking, the Iron Ore Mine Operation segment recorded a
loss of approximately HK$5,983,000 for the year ended 31 March
2013 (2012: HK$2,444,000). The loss was mainly comprised of

administrative expenses and production trial run expenses.

During the year under review, the Group incurred non-cash finance
costs of HK$25,509,000 (2012: HK$22,128,000) as a result of the
imputed interests on the convertible notes issued to the vendors of

Indonesia Iron Mine business.

In accordance with the valuation report of the equity component of
the convertible notes issued, fair value change in respect of financial
liability of HK$1,150,000 (convertible notes) was reflected through
profit or loss account; this non-cash item enhanced our financial

results accordingly.
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Shareholders’ equity decreased to approximately HK$261,022,000
as at 31 March 2013 from approximately HK$458,085,000 as at 31
March 2012. As at 31 March 2013, the short term interest bearing
debts to shareholders’ equity was approximately 31.2% (as at 31
March 2012: approximately 12.9%).

K2ERXRNRBHA-_T—=—FAtH
BT ——FHEBEBEEEIR 2 M
Damparf& 4 81UPF5 B A (PT. Indo Modern
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EHEJr B 1FF Z #2115 518 475,983,000
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had total assets of
HK$849,351,000 (2012: HK$998,681,000) which was financed
by current liabilities of HK$101,197,000 (2012: HK$76,645,000),
non-current liability of HK$230,569,000 (2012: HK$206,210,000),
non-controlling interests of approximately HK$256,563,000 (2012:
HK$257,741,000) and shareholders’ equity of HK$261,022,000
(2012: HK$458,085,000).

The Group's current ratio as at 31 March 2013 was approximately
1.49 (2012:
borrowings divided by the shareholders’ equity was approximately
31.2% (2012:
Group as at 31 March 2013 were denominated in Renminbi, about

1.98) and gearing ratio, representing the total

12.9%). The total outstanding borrowings of the

73.1% (2012: 100%) borrowings was interest-bearing with variable
rates while interest of the remaining balances was calculated on
fixed interest rates.

As at 31 March 2013, certain buildings with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$27,229,000 (2012: approximately
HK$29,789,000), plant and machinery amounting to approximately
HK$25,145,000 (2012: HK$32,746,000),
of approximately HK$4,051,000 (2012: HK$4,139,000) had been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. As at 31

land use rights amount

March 2013, the Group had no other material capital commitment

and contingent liabilities.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS
DURING THE YEAR

As announced on 22 January 2013, the Group has completed the
transfer of the entire issued share capital in Conmet International
Real Estate Limited and its PRC subsidiary. Details of which are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed herein, during the year under review, there
were no other material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries or

associates of the Company.
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of significant subsequent events are set out in note 46 to the

consolidated financial statements.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN
EXCHANGE RATES

Most of the Group's assets, liabilities and business transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi, Indonesian Rupiah
and US Dollars which have been relatively stable during the year
ended 31 March 2013. The Group was not exposed to material
exchange risk and had not employed any financial instruments for

hedging purposes.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group has a total of approximately 485 employees in Hong
Kong, Indonesia, Mongolia and the PRC as at 31 March 2013.
Remuneration packages are generally structured according to market
situations and individual performance. Apart from the mandatory
provident fund and statutory retirement benefits, the Group also
provides medical benefits and sponsors employees in different

training and continuous education programs.
APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our shareholders and business associates for their ongoing
support and extend our appreciation to our management team and
staff members for their contributions to our achievements in the

year.

By order of the Board
Chim Kim Lun, Ricky

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2013
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The directors of the Company present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 47 to 48.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2013 are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of share options are set out in note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution to
shareholders. However, a company cannot declare or pay a dividend,

or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(i) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities

as they become due; or

(ii)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium accounts.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

The Company has deficit at 31 March 2013 which comprises
contributed surplus of approximately HK$180,030,000 less
accumulated losses of approximately HK$921,045,000. Accordingly,
the Company has no reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2013.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group spent an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$9,080,000 on the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment for expansion and
improvement of the facilities of its pharmaceutical and mining

business and no disposal of property, plant and equipment.
Details of these and other movements in property, plant and

equipment of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2013 are
set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS" SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2013 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky
(Chairman)

Mr. Chan Sung Wai
(Deputy Chairman) (retired on 21 September 2012)

Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph (resigned on 31 May 2012)

Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong (appointed on 6 July 2012)

Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony (appointed on 16 October 2012)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Tong Leung Sang
Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Zhang Xianlin
Mr. Lum Pak Sum

Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse

In accordance with Clauses 86(2) and 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony, Mr. Zhang Xianlin and Mr.
Lum Pak Sum will retire at the Annual General Meeting, and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the Annual

General Meeting.

EEREERBEY
KRE-F-—ZHZAS+—RILERAR
HEARSAMIEAAT 2 EFMOT
HITEE:

ERlstst

(/)

PRS2 IE S A

(BIEmE) (R=ZZ—=F
NAZ+—HBEE)

EamTE (R=ZZ2—=F
AA=+—B&MI)

SRR A& (RZE——%
+ANBEZTE)

BB EE (R=ZZ—=F
+A+NBEEE)

EHITES:

bkt

BYFEHITES:

REMEE

B R T4

SEXRTE

RIBARRGE 2 ARIMEIFES6(2) R87(1)& 15
B AE S REBMEERMIBRITEBZNEK
RAFASLERT MESHFLEEKARE
ERBRRBFAG LBERETES-

34 Asia Resources Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2013



DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS" SERVICE
CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

The term of office of each of the Independent and Non-executive
Directors is for a term of three years subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the Annual General Meeting as required

by the Company's Bye-laws.

None of the Director being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has any unexpired service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Directors’ interests in shares

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO"), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified

to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

TMERERARAT « —T—=FFH

Directors’ Report
EEERE

EEREERBEN (FE)

BEBILFPTESTZEMR=F HAR
BARBZ ARAAMERBRRBFAE
WERENEREET-

BRARERRBFASG LERET2ESH
EEANBRETAMBARI LR —FA
AEBMELAE CEEMERRIN) BINAE
e Z AR FE T RS & 4D -

EENRFETHAERES

Z e
EERRG 2R

R-E—=F=A=+—R BFKIET
BABRARRR HEMBEEE (EERE
7 KRB ED ([78 5 R EIEERGI]) EXVER)
ZBedn ~ BB D R B A AR SR A
RAREBESERERPIE3S2FAFELZ
BEMA ABTRELHRAMATLHA

35



Directors’ Report
EEEWRE

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Directors’ interests in shares (Continued)

(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
as set out in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company

%%gi%ﬁﬁkﬁ%a_&%
ZHER (F)
EERRDoERE (F)

AEFETERRHZBETA ([REST
A BHNEARRRBESHARSMBRA
Al ([BERPT)) 2 st FORB AT

RERBRGZHFE

Number of ordinary shares held

BHEZEERYA
Total
interests as
Number of percentage of
Personal Family Corporate  share options Total the issued
Name of Director interest interests interests held interests share capital
HERTREZ
B4 18 A RIkE & ARER REZEREHE HEE HARESASN
Chim Kim Lun, Ricky Efls - - - 35,000,000 35,000,000 0.90%
Cheung Kai Kwong SRETK - - 80,000,000 10,000,000 90,000,000 2.32%
(Note 1)
(Hizt1)
Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony ~ 15/25 - - 21,000,000 10,000,000 31,000,000 0.80%
(Note 2)
(Hiz2)
Tong Leung Sang ek - - - 3,500,000 3,500,000 0.09%
Zhang Xianlin KRB - - - 3,500,000 3,500,000 0.09%
Lum Pak Sum DISEES - - - 3,500,000 3,500,000 0.09%
Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse HBEZ - - - - - -
Notes: Bat -

(1) Such shares were held by Brave Admiral Limited of which Mr. Cheung
Kai Kwong was the sole director and ultimate sole shareholder.

(2)  Such shares were held by Fieldton Holdings Limited of which Mr.
Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony was the sole director and ultimate sole
shareholder.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors
or the chief executives or their associates had any interests of short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, subsidiaries or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

(1) %M1 JyhBrave Admiral Limitedis 5 -
MRRIL R EBZ AR ZHE—EE R RRKE
—fRE -

(2)  #ZZRM A5 JhhFieldton Holdings Limited##
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on
14 January 2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) has been
terminated on 9 August 2011 and a new Share Option Scheme

(the "2011 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company

on 9 August 2011. No options were granted under the 2011 Share

Option Scheme since its adoption.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the details and movements

in the share options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme

are as follows:
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EEERE

BB IREeT

ARAR-_ZTZ-_F—-A+HBERAZER
EE ([ —ZEZ_FBEREAS R =%
——FNANAHEKLE MARFRER-F
——FN\ANBRA—IEFERETE ([
T-—FRERESE]) BHEHERGNUR
ARBFERE T ——FBREFIRD
(ERCE-e

BEZZE—=F=A=+—"HILFE BE
TR _FBRETEERN CERE
BEREENT

Number of share options

BREHA
Outstanding
Exercisable  Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled at
Exercisable price per at 1 April during the during the during the during the 31 March
Date of grant period share 2012 year year year year 2013
RZB-Z% R=B-Z%
A-H =B=t-H
REBH s BRTRE HATE  REARE  REATR  REAXR REREH HRTE
HKS
B
Category 1: Directors
BRI E%
Chim Kim Lun, Ricky 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 35,000,000 - - - - 35,000,000
11 July 2021
ERls T-—%tf+-R ZT--5tAtZRE
B -%tAt+-H
Chan Sung Wai 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 16,000,000 - - - - 16,000,000
(retired on 21 September 2012) 11 July 2021
BEE(WZT-2F T-—%tf+-R ZT-—5tAt+ZRE
NAZ+-BRE) —B--ftAt-B
Wong King Lam, Joseph 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 16,000,000 - - - - 16,000,000
(resigned on 31 May 2012) 11 July 2021
ERR(W=T-2& T-—%tf+-R ZZT--5tAt+ZRE
LA=T-BEfE) ZEZ-5tA1-8
Cheung Kai Kwong 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
(appointed on 6 July 2012) 11 July 2021
FEE(R=T-—=F “T-—%tf+ZR ZT-—5tAt+ZRE
tAABEZA) —B--ftAt-B
Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
(appointed on 16 October 2012) 11 July 2021
BRA(R=F-2% T-—%tf+-R ZZ-—5tAt+ZRE
TATRBEZHE) —B--ftAt-B
Tong Leung Sang 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 3,500,000 - - - - 3,500,000
11 July 2021
ARk “T-—%tf+ZR ZZT-—5tAt+ZRE
B -%tAt+-H
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BireEsral (&)

Number of share options

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

BREHA
Outstanding
Exercisable  Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled at
Exercisable price per at 1 April during the during the during the during the 31 March
Date of grant period share 2012 year year year year 2013
RZB-Z% RZE-ZF
A-H ZA=1-H
RHAH TS BRITRE WATE  REARE  RERTR  RERAR REREH AR
HKS
B
Yiu Fai Ming 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 3,500,000 - - (3,500,000) - -
(not re-elected at the 11 July 2021
Annual General Meeting
held on 9 August 2011)
R (R =F-—F\ANA “T-—-%+f+ZR ZEF-—5tAtZAHE
B RREEASL “B2--%tA+-H
TEESR)
Zhang Xianlin 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 3,500,000 - - - - 3,500,000
11 July 2021
REMN E——%{AtZH ZB--5tAtZAE
ZEZ-E+AT-H
Tse Yuk Kong 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 3,500,000 - - (3,500,000) - -
(retired on 9 August 2011) 11 July 2021
AW (R=F——FN\ANR “E——%fft-H “E2-—-4tAt-BEF
RIE) ZEZ-E+AT-H
Lum Pak Sum 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 3,500,000 - - - - 3,500,000
11 July 2021
A% —“2-——&+f+-R —Z-—-5tft+-REZ
o -E+AT-H
Total for directors 104,500,000 - - (7,000,000) - 97,500,000
EFM:
Category 2:
BA=:
Employees 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 24,000,000 B - (2,000,000) - 22,000,000
11 July 2021
(3] ZE——%tA+ZR ZE--FtAtZHE
B2 £+ A+-H
Total for employees 24,000,000 - - (2,000,000) - 22,000,000

ERMAG
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Directors’ Report
EEERE

BT E ()

Number of share options

BREHA
Outstanding
Exercisable  Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled at
Exercisable price per at 1 April during the during the during the during the 31 March
Date of grant period share 2012 year year year year 2013
RZZ-ZF RZF-ZF
A-H ZR=1-H
RAAH T8 ERTKE WATE  REARE  REARTRE  RERXR REREH HRTE
HKS
BT
Category 3:
BAI=:
Other affiliates 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.07 12,000,000 - - - - 12,000,000
11 July 2021
EBEAL “B——4{A+-H -Z2--4tAt-BE
“EZ-FtAT-H
Total for other affiliates 12,000,000 - - - - 12,000,000
EtBEA TR
Total for all categories 140,500,000 - - (9,000,000) - 131,500,000

BB st

The closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 12 July 2011, being the date of grant, was HK$0.071.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above in respect of the Directors’ interests in
securities and note 36 to the consolidated financial statements, at
no time during the year ended 31 March 2013, was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

TMERERARAT « —T—=FFH

ARAEOHR-_F——FLA+-H (A
B HD) B A AT PR R 2 W T (B R0.07158

JG ©
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B EX R ESTRES < m MRE M@K
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A2 EEREBARRRSEMEMEAR
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2013, so far as was known to the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than any director and chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
as recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange:

== N\ 2

TERRZER

Number of

issued ordinary

Y

&\‘

NS
mp

RITE—=F=A=+—HB BREERAEAR
FIZEZTBRABMRM ATAL(RRF
EANEERETZTHRABRIN RARF R
I MR R A m SRR MARE
M HERIIEXVEE2RE3IN A Z HFX
R E  HEEBEN AR R AREES L
BIRPIE3B6IHAFEZECMA  RBTTA
RGNS RS

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
capital of

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company

(Note 1)

R NN

BEZE BT ERITREAZ

RRERB g7 ZERHAE BB

(Hizt1)

Golden Mount Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 215,000,000 (L) 5.54%
Golden Mount Limited ( #77%2) E=mfEAA

Mr. Chim Pui Chung (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 215,000,000 (L) 5.54%

EREEE (H2) NEES AR 2w

Mr. Yue Wai Keung Beneficial owner 270,000,000 (L) 6.96%
REEREE BB A

Empire Bridge Assets Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 2,101,937,735 54.19%
BliEBR AR (H5E3) BB A

Tang Sze Wan (Note 3) Interest in a controlled corporation 2,101,937,735 54.19%

W8 (HiE3)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(L) All the shares are long positions.

1. The percentages are calculated based on the total number of issued
shares of the Company of 3,878,745,758 Shares as at 31 March
2013.

2. Golden Mount Limited is solely owned by Mr. Chim Pui Chung, who
is the father of Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky, a Director.

3. Empire Bridge Assets Limited (“Empire Bridge”), solely owned by

Ms. Tang Sze Wan, is the sole beneficial owner of HK$391,591,000
zero coupon convertible non-redeemable note due 2017 issued
on 29 September 2010 by the Company at a conversion price of
HK$0.1863 each (which entitle Empire Bridge to 2,101,937,735
Conversion Shares upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to

such convertible notes in full).

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified and is
not aware of any other person who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2013.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2013.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations accounting to
HK$84,190 (2012: Nil).

TMERZERARAT « —T—=FFH
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1. ZEENLIREARAR-_Z—Z=ZF=A
=+— EIZE%@L‘H %) 48 £13,878,745,758
R 1D 5

2. Golden Mount Limiteddi ZE £ & &l k4L 2
RPERDRLBERES -

3. ERBERAR (BB AEFRLLIEE
BH ZARDARAR-_ZTE—ZTFHA
—+ N BEERRN0.1863B T2 HIRER
TR T —+FE5|H2391,591,000/8 7T
SEMRBRIAAERREIE—ESEA
AN REETEZS A RBREEMNE 2K
kg% B HA#EREE2,101,937,735/%8
B o

BREXHBEEEN R_T—=F=A
=t—HB ARRYELEEBMAY TNEE
EAE M A TRA R R SARRE AR 0 o
BRENARARIERF L E HRHI5£336
GREFEZECMAZERIORE

EENEHN2ER

CE R B S E AR B A R B
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A=t+—-BLhFEREAREFEEARR

EXFERARAAEAER Zij(/\%ﬁ

}E%‘r
w
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales during the year ended 31 March 2013,
attributable to the Group’'s five largest customers comprised
approximately 26.17% of the Group's total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year ended 31 March 2013,
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers comprised
approximately 72.30% of the Group's total purchases while
the purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier was
approximately 34.67% of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2013, did a director,
an associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company, which
to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, have an interest in any of the five
largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2013, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up on
the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Apart from
the mandatory provident fund and statutory retirement benefits, the
Group also provides medical benefits and sponsored employees in
different training and continuous education program.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are decided,
having regard to the Company's operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

TEEFRHERD

REBEE-_ZT—=FE=A=+—HILEERN"
AEEBRARFPZARHEEROAEERH
ERHLI26.17% °

REBEE-Z—=F=A=+—HLFER"
AEBRABEE 2 ARKBEEAEER
REETEAT2.30% M AASEE 2 & AMHEEAN
G2 FRIBEE A AN E B A RIERE434.67% ©

REBEE_ZT—=F=-A=+T—HLEFERME
MM EF BEFCBHBEATARESAR
MBEBRRFEEITRAS%IA EZARF]
RS EREEAEETMNARNEERRT P
AT M A o

RBEZE-_T—=F=A=+—BLEFER"
ARABNREMEARMERE LEXED
ARRBER EHES -

B B R

AEBEREBZFMBEIREEARR BE
K BE T 7€ o BR 98 B M AT & NOR TE IR IR
‘AN NEETREHREEENMMEDES
S2MEREIRFERETE -

ARBEEZHFMNNHIZ2REARAZLEE
B EARBEETS EAR LB BT
RIE °

AARIEHEM—BERESE EAHES
keaBEWREE ZEE)  FIHENERE IS
FMI5E36 ©
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company

to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 March 2013.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 March
2011 and 2012 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng.

In March 2012, the practice of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng was
reorganized as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. An ordinary
resolution for the appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as the Auditors to hold office until the conclusion of the
forth coming annual general meeting (“2013 AGM") has been

passed at the annual general meeting held on 21 September 2012.
The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2013 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey

Cheng Limited, who shall retire at the 2013 AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Chim Kim Lun, Ricky
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B2 B ET R &

Bt TR R
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia
Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 47 to
163, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

31/F, Gloucester Tower & &

The Landmark HiR

11 Pedder Street FEITH1157
Central BEMES

Hong Kong ERTITRE3E

BENERERERATDETRR

(RERZAME L ZBERLA])

RIZEED (ATEBEHEM) EEREARNE
A7TE13EEMNERIERERAF ([ERQ
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2013
and of its loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practicing Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 27 June 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

an

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #EZ—=%

SEHIER

—SES A= —AIEE

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &t FET FH T
Revenue A 7 111,957 113,586
Cost of sales HE A (91,502) (89,347)
Gross profit FE A 20,455 24,239
Other revenue H bl A 8 516 1,090
Other gains b Uy 2 9 44,861 45,418
Distribution and selling expenses DIHEMEE R (19,423) (30,563)
Administrative expenses THAX (27,998) (27,338)
Other expenses HEmFAZ 10 (187,987) (141,348)
Finance costs A& KA 11 (29,744) (26,872)
Loss before taxation B 5 Bl B 18 72 (199,320) (155,374)
Taxation I8 15 - (202)
Loss for the year REEFEE (199,320) (155,576)
Other comprehensive income, Hb2EB A BRB#E
net of tax
Exchange differences on translating & GINEREE 2
foreign operations ME N ZRE 1,079 4,356
Other comprehensive income AEFHMEEUYA -
for the year, net of tax B 1,079 4,356
Total comprehensive loss rEELRZEER
for the year (198,241) (151,220)
Loss attributable to: FE AL B 48 -
Owners of the Company ZiN/NESTE SN (197,967) (154,276)
Non-controlling interest IR E S (1,353) (1,300)
(199,320) (155,576)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EEIER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z—=%F

—=F= A=+ —ALEE

2013 2012
—_E—-= —E——%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Ht it FTET FHT
Total comprehensive loss FEAG 48 2 TH E5 18
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEF BN (197,063) (149,920)
Non-controlling interest FEFE IR e (1,178) (1,300)
(198,241) (151,220)
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(restated)
(&%)
Loss per share BkEE
— Basic and diluted —EARREE 16 1.28 1.01
All operations of the Group are classified as continuing operations. REBsMBEEHED BRIFEKES
7% o

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
GEMBTRAR

At 31 March 2018 R-FE—=#=H=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
Bt it FTHExT FHT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB k& 17 77,676 83,411
Investment properties WA 18 40,877 =
Prepaid lease payments TN HEEKIE 19 3,935 4,023
Intangible asset | EE 20 576,334 576,334
Mining right R 21 - 183,433
698,822 847,201
Current assets REBEE
Inventories A 22 17,514 15,054
Trade and bills receivables BB M EREE 23 34,850 45,688
Prepayments, deposits and TERTFRIE ~ & R A U
other receivables AR 24 11,744 6,876
Amount due from a non- FEW — & IEIEAR AR SR 2
controlling shareholder KIE 29 696 738
Tax recoverable GEE 572 568
Financial assets at fair value BRBREAFEARZ
through profit or loss WBEEE 25 11,682 741
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR MRS 26 73,471 81,815
150,529 151,480
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables 2 S ENERR 27 10,514 9,330
Other payables and accruals HEMEMNER R ETE A 28 7,965 6,807
Amount due to a non-controlling FER — R IEIERARE 2
shareholder B 29 1,377 1,460
Bank borrowings RITIEE 30 59,472 59,048
Short-term interest bearing REFEEE
borrowings 31 21,869 -
101,197 76,645
Net current assets RENEEFE 49,332 74,835
Total assets less current liabilities ZEE#AERTEBERE 748,154 922,036
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

o & BB R L 5=

At 31 March 20183 R=-F—=#=H=+—H

2013 2012
—_E—-= —E——%F
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
HiaF FET T

Capital and reserves BEXRREE
Share capital % Z< 32 193,937 193,937
Reserves L] 67,085 264,148

Total equity attributable to ARAREEAEMN

owners of the Company DB 261,022 458,085
Non-controlling interest FERER 256,563 257,741
517,585 715,826

Non-current liability FRBEE
Convertible notes AR =5 33 230,569 206,210
230,569 206,210
748,154 922,036

The consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 163 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27

June 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky
ERlsiE
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

FATRIBAZHAVBBRROCHEFTERN
TR XRASTERAERERETIEY
AU TATRREZTERE:

Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong
RREE &
Director

EF

BERT < S AR BRI RERZ — &0 -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEmEER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERREEARE
PRC Attributable
Share statutory to non-
Share Share option Special reserve  Translation  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve funds reserve losses  Subtotal interest Total
BRE il 2R
Bx  RHEE B HAEE ETARE  EXRE  RAEE Mt EEER E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL THL T L T TAL TAL THL T
(note j) (note ii)
(hiti) (W)
At 1 April 2011 WZZ——£NmA-A 184,937 728,785 = 92,926 3,286 30,045 (453,137) 586,842 259,041 845,883
Loss for the year rEERE - - - - - - (154276) (154,276 (1,300 (155.576)
Other comprehensive loss for the year ~ AZERM2AEE - - - - - 4,356 - 4,356 = 4,356
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AFEE2ARE - - - - - 4356 (154.276)  (149,920) (1,3000  (151,220)
Conversion of convertible notes TRRERERARY
into shares 9,000 9,527 - - - - - 18,527 - 18,527
Release upon disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBAAEHER - - - - (1,224) (5,485) 1,224 (5,485) - (5,485)
Share-based payment expenses IR AERZHRAL - - 8,121 - - - - 8,121 - 8,121
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012
193,937 738,312 8,121 92,926 2,062 28,916 (606,189) 458,085 257,141 715,826
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - (197,97) (197,967 (1,353)  (199,320)
Other comprehensive expenses AEEEMEARR
for the year - - - - - 904 - 904 175 1,079
Total comprehensive expenses AEFELERX
for the year - - - - - 904 (197,967) (197,063) (1,178) (198,241)
Lapse of share option BEREEN - - (520) - - = 520 = = =
At 31 March 2013 R-B-Z§=A=1-H 193,937 738,312 7,601 92,926 2,062 29,820 (803,636) 261,022 256,563 517,585
Notes: gz
(i) The special reserve of the Group represents the excess of the nominal () AEBZERFBEREESHAEAREA
amount of the shares of the subsidiaries at the date of the group Al Z RO EEBEARQRIERWERBA A
reorganisation over the nominal amount of the shares issued by the ZREMBETZRNDEBELERE:
Company as consideration for the acquisition of the subsidiaries.
(i) As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign (i) BRPEARKEFME ([FEH])INGEERES

investment in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory
reserves, being a statutory surplus reserve and an enterprise expansion
fund (collectively referred to as the “PRC statutory reserve funds”),
which are non-distributable. The statutory surplus reserve fund may
be used to make up prior year losses incurred and, with approval from
relevant government authority, to increase capital. The enterprise
expansion fund, subject to approval by relevant government authority,
may also be used to increase capital.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z—=%F

—=F= A=+ —ALEE

2013 2012
—g—-= —ET—_F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FHET FHT
Operating activities BB
Loss before taxation BREIRTE R (199,320) (155,374)
Adjustments for: HTH BB FHE:
Interest income on bank deposits RITF FH B A (102) (57)
Finance cost A& KA 29,745 26,872
Depreciation of property, Y BEREKBETE
plant and equipment 14,777 14,717
Depreciation of investment "EMENE
properties 254 -
Amortisation of prepaid T8 5 78 & 5k I8 4 8
lease payments 116 116
Fair value changes on financial BERREAFEARZ
assets at fair value through ﬁﬂ‘%ﬁ?Z
profit or loss NTEEEZE 309 (13)
Fair value changes on TMRER A TFESZ
convertible notes E2)| (1,150) (27,371)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁ :JHSZ¥ - (16,571)
Reversal of impairment loss H 5 e W AR R R
recognised in respect of A B8 T
trade receivables (2,723) (1,298)
Reversal of impairment loss EL A W BR R 3R
recognised in respect of B E R B
other receivables (40,988) -
Provision for impairment loss on 5 EBRR 2 RE
trade receivables BB 4,554 3,060
Expense recognised in respect AR EE AR GL
of equity-settled share-based REB 2 IRERZ
payments 3 - 8,121
Provision for impairment loss H b e G IE 2
on other receivables TEEERE - 64,000
Provision for impairment loss RIERE 2 BEEBIERE
on mining right 183,433 66,167
Operating cash flows before ﬁi 011 pd
movements in working capital BHEERE (11,095) (17,631)
Increase in inventories ﬁ;i‘ n (2,460) (462)
Decrease in trade and B Z KRR
bills receivables JE W =3B 12,750 4,057
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,  JBfTFIB - & & & H4b fE U
deposits and other receivables BRF () R (6,196) 5,969
Increase/(decrease) in trade and f@’f%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ?ﬂ&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ?
bills payables #h0,7 O b 965 (3,656)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables H fth & {5 BR 7 &Fguﬂ‘éﬁﬁﬁ
and accruals #in, CRd) 1,091 (4,264)
Increase in amount due to a non- JE 1 FE 52 AR AR 51 SR IE 4L AN
controlling shareholder - 1,460
Decrease in amount JE 1~ AR R SR IEDR
due to a shareholder - (22)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year

an
ended 31 March 2013 #Z—-F

~*E

B%ﬂiumsi§%

—SES A= —AIEE

2013 2012
—E—-= —_E——
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
B it THEx FHET
Cash generated from operations KEEEXEG 2 R® (4,945) (14,549)
The PRC enterprise income tax paid BEffHBEDERER - (202)
Net cash used in operating AR EES B &8
activities (4,945) (14,751)
Investing activities RETE
Interest received B A B 102 57
Purchase of property, BEWE BEREE
plat and equipment (9,080) (4,941)
Purchase of financial assets EEAEBER
through profit or loss HIER 2 A& (11,250) -
Proceeds from disposal of & MY B A B FTi5 3k 8
a subsidiary - 12,000
Net cash inflow on acquisition of g1y =R/NC g
subsidiaries W MAFEE 3 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from BR),/ REKREEEH 2
investing activities e FHE (20,225) 7,116
Financing activities REEE
Interest paid EAIFE (4,236) (4,744)
Increase in short-term interest RHETE & SER=S il
bearing borrowings 21,869 =
New bank borrowings raised HIERITIEE 59,472 47,148
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTESR (59,048) (56,983)
Net cash generated from/(used in) 28 (HR)BMEEFE 2
financing activities HEF5 18,057 (14,579)
Net decrease in cash and cash RekBeFEML
equivalents B F R (7,113) (22,214)
Cash and cash equivalents at RENZBERRESEED
beginning of the year 81,815 101,964
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEEXE B 2
changes (1,231) 2,065
Cash and cash equivalents RERZBERRESEED
at end of the year 73,471 81,815
Analysis of balances of cash and RekBFeFEDL
cash equivalents EER DT
Bank balances and cash SRITHEBRNIR® 73,471 81,815
73,471 81,815

The accompany notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHmRERMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZ—=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE
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GENERAL

Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability. Its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information of its

annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company, while its
subsidiaries (hereinafter the Company and its subsidiaries are
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacture and sales of pharmaceutical products in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), and engaged in
iron ore exploration, exploitation and trading operation in

Mongolia and Indonesia.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is the same as the functional

currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

r & B T R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations (“New
HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations
and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2012.

HKFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of
(Amendments) Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters

HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
(Amendments) Assets

HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
(Amendments) Assets

The application of the above New HKFRSs had no material
effect on the results and financial positions of the Group for
the current or prior accounting periods have been prepared
and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has
been required.

TMERZERBRAT « —T—=FFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZ—=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™)
(CONTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

standards, amendments and interpretations that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle?

5] & &R1ER] & 78 I % R
A ([&ENBHE

I
1) 2 A (&)

1 Dff 24
i

\|

RE B AR T FE A AT B 28 46 i
REB T RBIERTER 5] Rz

HKFRS 1 Government Loans?
(Amendments)

HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
(Amendments) Assets and Financial Liabilities?

HKFRS 7 and Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures?
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other

Entities?
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?

HKFRS 10, HKFRS

11 and HKFRS 12

(Amendments)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS

12 and HKAS 27

(Amendments)

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance?

Investment Entities’

BEEMNBHSE “EENFE_F
8 (&357) ——FBRHZF
EE ¢
BEMBHRSE BT E

RRIE15% (BFT)

BEMBHRSE

LRIFET75% (BFT)
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875 &

AR BHEENS

95% (1&&7)
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5

AR 55 95%

BRBRE

R/ FE105%

BEMBHRSE

&

LRI

EHBERE

LRI 1255

BEEMBHSE

5

8 55135

R TR R

F10% BAEHB
WMEERFNHR
BERMBREER
F125% (1537)
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F10%  BAEHB
WMEERF12% K
B
F275 (1537)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z—

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(CONTINUED)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 19 (as revised in

2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in

2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income’
Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and Joint

2011) Ventures?
HKAS 32 Presentation — Offsetting Financial
(Amendments) Assets and Financial Liabilities”
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets: Recoverable
(Amendments) Amount Disclosure for Non-

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Financial Assets’
Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

ZF=ZA=1T—HUFE

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies?

d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZ=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for

the classification and measurement of financial assets.

HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the

classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for

derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

58

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income

generally recognised in profit or loss.

5] & &R1ER] & 78 I % R
]EJJ (TEETBRE

) 2B (4&)

1 Dff 24
i

\|

1

BERVBREENFIRYKIAR

R-ZZENFEMGZBEEYBREE
AIESRSIAMBEEN BRFTEZH
RE-R_Z-—ZFBIT2ERBMBR
SEAFIREREBMBRENE
AEURBUBER ZHE -

BRI RELERFESR 2 EEHREH
ANy ¢

s FMACHERZBEESFEARE
39%% [/ T A - i3 2 | 8
BAZHBHEEERRIZC #IHK
A RNFEFE-ABME  EHE
EEAFAME B RKRIA KR
EREBZEBRE URERX
NARERREEASFEZEHD
Ren82BHERE —KRAR
HERE HEEREIRE #HK
AAE-EEMEHKKRE kR
AEEANERETHRERE
BREQNTFEFE W REFE
MR EEAESR  BERAFEL
THHEEEREMEZEKRAZ
PIBRAIE (WIFIERE) 2 H
BRAFEES M- KREXRBR
M RE R AL B A

Asia Resources Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit

or loss was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2015, with earlier application permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZ—=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirement of the standards are described
below

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK (SIC) — Int 12 Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition
of control that contains three elements: (a) power over an
investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s
returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to
deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. HKFRS
11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control should be classified. HK (SIC) — Int
13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-monetary Contributions
by Venturers will be withdrawn upon the effective date of
HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified
as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the rights
and obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast,
under HKAS 31, there are three types of joint arrangements:
jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly
controlled operations. In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS
11 are required to be accounted for using the equity method
of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities under
HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity method of
accounting or proportionate consolidation.

ERGS RERE BEATR
I 5T R S5 5T

N_ZE——F A Bh—EREEH
e HRTH - BEQARRIFEEZE
B BERBMERELENEI0% &
BTSRRI E115% BB KRS
ERIE125%  BA G ERFE275 (=
T——FRIEET) R BB G ERIFE28
F(ZE——FLIBE]) °

ZEERZTERTEILUT

BREMBHRESERNE 10T BE G
HRNE27R (A8 REZHUBHHRX ] i
BREMBHRRcBOREE (B2
BEZEg) RER 2% Fe K
BeyEfE] - BRI IEHELEAFE105%
HEZHREZHER BR=2ALR:
QYR ERBZHE (D)2 EKKE
RAEPTSAZ LR R REN - K()
TEHFRERTZENANTERESE
EHESRZES -BEMBEREELF
105RE IARIZ 18 5| A BRI FE ISR

ERMBHRELNENENRELES
SPEREIVR IREELAZ#am ] -
BREMBHREERNENREREZ M X
ZHHAREH 2 KRL RS -
BE(RBREZES) —RES13%
(KEAZER - &L EHZHEE
HE ] BNEBMBERELEANE 1R
R EHIRE - RBE BV RE EA
FNH KALZHLERARALERE
BRA BRREIRREZEMNRE
E-ALLTME  REBEBF B G ERIFE3
5 KRR H D B={EHH : L E
B HEEHBEERARZENLE-
AN RIBFBF B RE L F 1152
BRERAARBAERGIAARK MR
BEBSHEREI R AREIE R
ARBEEE AL PR IAARR

Asia Resources Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

r & B T R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

HKFRS 12 is a standard for disclosure and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more
extensive than those in the current standards.

These standards are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted
provided that all of these five standards are applied early at the
same time.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in the
current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS
7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS
13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™)
(CONTINUED)

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology
for the statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a statement
of comprehensive income is renamed as a statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and an income
statement is renamed as a statement of profit or loss. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other
comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories in
the other comprehensive income section: (a) items that will
not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis. The amendments do not change the option to present
items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net
of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items
of other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly
when the amendments are applied in the future accounting

periods.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

The amendments to HKAS 19 change the accounting for
defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The most
significant change relates to the accounting for changes in
defined benefit obligations and plan assets. The amendments
require the recognition of changes in defined benefit
obligations and in fair value of plan assets when they occur,
and hence eliminate the ‘corridor approach’ permitted under
the previous version of HKAS 19 and accelerate the recognition
of past service costs. The amendments require all actuarial
gains and losses to be recognised immediately through other
comprehensive income in order for the net pension asset or
liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus.
Furthermore, the interest cost and expected return on plan
assets used in the previous version of HKAS 19 are replaced
with a ‘net-interest’ amount, which is calculated by applying

the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The amendments to HKAS 19 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and require retrospective

application with certain exceptions.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™)
(CONTINUED)

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 address inconsistencies in
current practice when applying the offsetting criteria and

clarify:

o the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right

of set-off’; and

o that some gross settlement systems may be considered

equivalent to net settlement.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014 and are required to be applied

retrospectively.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013. Amendments to HKFRSs include:

o amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial

Statements;

o amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment;
and

o amendments to HKAS 32 Ffinancial Instruments:

Presentation.
HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification to present a statement of financial position as
at the beginning of the preceding period (third statement of
financial position). The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that
an entity is required to present a third statement of financial
position only when the retrospective application, restatement
or reclassification has a material effect on the information in
the third statement of financial position and that related notes
are not required to accompany the third statement of financial

position.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™)
(CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012 (Continued)

HKAS 16 (Amendments)

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-
by equipment and servicing equipment should be classified
as property, plant and equipment when they meet the
definition of property, plant and equipment in HKAS 16 and as
inventory otherwise. The Directors do not anticipate that the
amendments to HKAS 16 will have a significant effect on the

Group's consolidated financial statements.
HKAS 32 (Amendments)

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax
on distributions to holders of an equity instrument and
transaction costs of an equity transaction should be accounted
for in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes"”. The Directors
anticipate that the amendments to HKAS 32 will have no

effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact
of the above new HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet
in a position to state whether the above new HKFRSs will have
a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and
financial position.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

HKAS 36 (Amendments) Impairments in Assets:
Recoverable Amount Disclosure for Non-Financial
Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 are to remove certain
unintended disclosure requirements which may be introduced
by the consequential amendments to HKAS 36 when HKFRS
13 was issued. Furthermore, these amendments require the
disclosure of additional information about the fair value
measurement when the recoverable amount of impaired assets
is based on fair value less costs of disposal. The amendments
to HKAS 36 are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014. Earlier application is permitted. However,
an entity may not apply those amendments in periods
(including comparative periods) in which it does not also apply
HKFRS 13.

HK(IFRIC) 21 Levies

HK(IFRIC) 21 is an interpretation of HKAS 37 and addresses
how an entity should account for liabilities to pay levies
imposed by governments, other than income taxes, in its
financial statements. The principal question raised was about
when the entity should recognise a liability to pay a levy. It
clarifies that the obligating event that gives rise to a liability
to pay a levy is the activity described in the relevant legislation
that triggers the payment of the levy. HK(IFRIC) 21 is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with

earlier application permitted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consolidation given

exchange for assets.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to

obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented

separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
as the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the relevant conditions for
recognition were generally recognised at their fair values at the

acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of
the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

The non-controlling interest in the acquiree is initially
measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent

liabilities recognised.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts

and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are

delivered and title has passed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measure
reliably).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less subsequent depreciation and
any identified impairment loss at the end of the reporting

period.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for

their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other property,

plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives after

3.
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line method, at the following rates per annum:
Buildings 4% EF 4%
Furniture, fixtures and R RKE
office equipment 20% - 25% FENE “1% 20% - 25%

Leasehold improvements 20% — 50% HEYMEERE 20% — 50%
Motor vehicles 12'2% — 30% B 12'2% — 30%
Plant and machinery 6%/3% — 30% & B Fo 28 6%/3% — 30%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the year in which the

item is dereognised.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. The mining right is amortised using
the unit-of-production method based on the total proven and
probable mineral reserves, which is reviewed at least at each
end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of mining right

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for mining right at each reporting date. Mining
right is tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When value in
use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to

calculate the present values of those cash flows.

Expected Useful lives of Mining Right and Mineral
Reserves

The Group’s management has determined the estimated useful
lives of its mining rights based on the proven and probable

mineral reserves.

Amortisation rate is determined based on estimated proven
and probable mineral reserve quantities with reference to the
independent technical assessment report. The capitalised costs
of the mining right are amortised using the unit-of-production
method. Any change to the estimated proven and probable
mineral reserves will affect the amortisation charge of the

mining right.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Expected Useful lives of Mining Right and Mineral
Reserves (Continued)

Proven and probable mineral reserve estimates are updated
at regular basis taking into account production and technical
information about the mines. In addition, as prices and cost
levels change from year to year, the estimate of proven
and probable mineral reserves also changes. This change is
considered a change in estimate for accounting purposes and
is reflected on a prospective basis in relation to amortisation

rate.
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except while
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefit from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals a rising under operating lease
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land use rights

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is

amortised over the lease term on straight-line basis.
Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary

items are recognised in the income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
jointly-controlled entities and associates are currencies other
than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their income statements are translated into Hong Kong

dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that

particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits costs
Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
(state-managed retirement benefits schemes/the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme) are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme, the assets of
which are held in separate trustee administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap monthly relevant income of
HK$20,000 up to 31 May 2012 and changed to HK$25,000
from 1 June 2012 (2011: HK$20,000). The Group's
contributions to the scheme are expensed as incurred are
vested in accordance with the scheme’s vesting scales.
Where employees leave the scheme prior to the full vesting
of the employer’'s contributions, the amount of forfeited
contributions is used to reduce the contributions payable by

the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits costs (Continued)
Retirement benefits scheme (Continued)

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the
PRC, the Group participates in the relevant social retirement
benefit schemes (the “PRC Schemes”) whereby the Group
is required to contribute to the PRC Schemes to fund the
retirement benefits of the eligible employees. Contributions
made to the PRC Schemes are calculated based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated
under the requirements in the PRC. The relevant authorities
of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the PRC Schemes is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the PRC Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represents gross
contributions by the Group to the PRC Schemes operated by
the relevant authorities of the PRC.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits costs (Continued)
Share options scheme

The Company operates a share options scheme for the
purpose of recognition of significant contribution of and
for the provision of incentives to any directors, employees
(whether full-time or part-time), consultants, customers,
suppliers, agents, partners or advisors of or contractors
to the Group or affiliates. The fair value of share options
granted to employee is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within equity.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of share options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that the

options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
share options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company's shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or the option

expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the

temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)
Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Research and development expenditure

All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to
complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset
will generate future economic benefits, the availability of
resources to complete the project and the ability to measure
reliably the expenditure during the development. Product
development expenditure which does not meet these criteria is

expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straightline
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products
not exceeding five to seven years, commencing from the date

when the products are put into commercial production.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the

asset may be impaired.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provision

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling

in the near future; or

3 it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a

recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other gains” line item in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each end of the reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, bank balances and cash and loans to an
associate) are measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less any impairment.
Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment
at each end of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition,

the estimated future cash flows have been affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHTEER ()

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued) BETE (&)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables

MBEEE (&)

B R JE W5 R B 1

Objective evidence of impairment could include: WEZRBEREE:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or o BITAIRSGHFHESTAYI
counterparty; or PR 2 sk

e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; e RSN HTEEMEENB AR
or &8k

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter . EARAB A REEREESM B E
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or 43k

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial s HBEEZERMISEMKKEES
asset because of financial difficulties. i EFE e

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is WEXEFIRFREELRRE AR

objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured BaERRERE WREEZKREE

as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the REREBRMER 2G5 BERES

present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at mMEZREBEZZRAE-

the original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment

not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain both
the conversion option components are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition. A conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s

own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
con-convertible debts. In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible notes is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component into
ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in equity until
the embedded option is exercised (in which case the balance
stated in capital reserve will be transferred to share premium).
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date,
the balance stated in capital reserve will be released to the
retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss

upon conversion or expiration of the option.

For the convertible notes issued in connection to the
acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition of
subsidiary, the conversion option component is recognised at
fair value and included in equity, taking into account that the
counterparty must forfeit the right to received cash in order
to receive equity instrument. For other convertible notes, the
difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option for the holder
to covert the notes into equity, is included in equity (capital

reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables and bank
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rates
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability or where
appropriate, a short period to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an

associated liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.
A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial

positions.
Contingent liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent liability is
not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be

recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. A
contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain,

an asset is recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties transactions

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or join control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.
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3.

98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties transactions (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between

parties.

3.

TESFEX (&)

BEALRS (&)

(b) fHATE THIMEM R BNEfE R
AEEERE: (8)

vy —HERRFE=7TE
=

(v BEER/AKENEAKEEA
HECEERNEEMRRY
) B BRL 4% AU 5 &1 o fe AN SR B
AEERZTE AERHEE
B EETEANKEEARR

(viy Ef

(vii) %%)Oﬂﬁ%%k& TEIEE

5

AL ZMREK K B R K E A
ETRZHBRHMAZEZALH
ALTREZZERKKE -

M =
B

ik ]
Xt

T AT 2 HFEERKEETEE A
BRRZBRERBEEALRF -

Asia Resources Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wr & B T R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and

future periods.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Note 3 describes that depreciation is provided to write
off the cost of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using straight-line method. The
estimation of useful lives of the depreciable assets is based
on the experience of the Group, and useful lives are reviewed
at each end of the reporting period based on changes in

circumstances.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful
lives of property, plant and equipment in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The
useful lives are estimated at the time the asset is acquired
based on historical experience, the expected usage, wear and
tear of the assets, as well as technical obsolescence arising
from changes in the market demands or service output
of the assets. The Group also performs annual reviews on
whether the assumptions made on useful lives continued to
be valid. The Group tests annually whether the assets have
suffered any impairment. The recoverable amount of an asset
or a cash generating unit is determined based on value-in-
use calculations which require the use of assumptions and
estimates.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the

period in which such determination is made.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
and selling goods of similar nature. It could change significant
as a result of change in market condition. Management will

reassess the estimations at the end of the reporting period.
Estimate of recoverable amounts of assets

The Group tests annually whether the assets have suffered
any impairment. The recoverable amount an asset or a
cash generating unit is determined based on value-in-
use calculations which require the use of assumptions and

estimates.
Impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. The Group’s maximum exposure to financial
loss due to failure to discharge an obligation by the debtors is
the carrying amount of trade and other receivables as stated in

the consolidated statement of financial position.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of intangible assets

Determine whether intangible assets are impaired requires
estimation of the value in use, The value in use calculation
requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise form the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount

rate in order to calculate the present value.

The carrying amount of intangible asset at the end of the
reporting period was approximately HK$576,334,000 (2012:
HK$576,334,000) and no impairment loss was recognised
during the year.

Impairment of mining right

The Group tests annually whether mining right has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated above. The recoverable amount of mining right has

been determined based on discounted cash flow method.

The carrying amount of mining right at the end of
the reporting period was reduced to HK$Nil (2012:
HK$183,433,000) and impairment loss of approximately
HK$183,433,000 (2012: HK$66,167,000) during the year.
Details of the impairment loss calculation are provided in note
21.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Measurement of convertible notes

On the date of issue of convertible notes, the fair value
is determined using a discount rate determined by an
independent professional valuer to the Group with reference
to market information; and this amount is carried as a long
term liability at fair value at the end of the reporting period in

accordance with the accounting policy stated above.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

5A. Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes 30 and
31 and equity attributable to owners of the Company,

comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on an on-going basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through new shares issues, as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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B 95 R 3R Bt 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z—=%F

(CONTINUED)

—=F= A=+ —ALEE

5A. Capital risk management (Continued)

5B.

The gearing ratio at the year end was as follows:

BT A (&)

5A. EXERERE (&)

RAFERBELERNT:

2013 2012

—E—-Z=F —EF—_F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET AT

Total debt? BER 81,341 59,048
Shareholders’ equity A% R a 261,022 458,085
Gearing ratio BE % 31.16% 12.89%
# Total debts comprises amount due to a shareholder # A& O IEENT — SRR ERRTT

and bank borrowings and short-term interest bearing
borrowings as detailed in notes 30 and 31 respectively.

EEURER T EER FEDFE
M t30%31 -

Categories of financial instruments 5B. ## T AE5
2013 2012
—g—-= —ET—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHEx FHET
Financial assets HEEE
Financial assets at fair value KERDIEAFEARZ
through profit or loss M EE 11,682 741
Loans and receivables ERRERZIE (RREREE R
(including cash and ReEEY)
cash equivalents) 113,186 130,035
Financial liabilities HEEE
At amortised cost birg: F i DN 101,197 76,457
Financial liability at fair value KEREATEARZ
through profit or loss PBaE 230,569 206,210
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. BT HE (&)

(CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and 5C. iREREEBERBRE

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and bill receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, amount due from non-controlling interest, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, bank
borrowings and short-term interest bearing borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures

are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. The Group’s
operations are mainly in the PRC other than Hong
Kong, and the sales and purchases transactions are
conducted using RMB, as such the foreign currency risk
is minimal. The Group currently has not entered into any
contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk. However, the
management monitors foreign currency exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZ—=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

106

(CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (note 30) and
bank deposits (see note 26 for details). It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interests
so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider restructure the Group’s credit
facilities should the need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of RMB Benchmark
Lending Rates (“RBLR") arising from the Group’'s RMB

denominated borrowings.

5. B TA (&)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. BT HE (&)

(CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and 5C. iREREEBERBRE

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk — Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
bank borrowings and bank deposits at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming bank
balances and the amount of liability outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were held/outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 would increase/
decrease by HK$297,000 (2012: increase/decrease by
HK$295,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its bank borrowings, short-
term interest bearing loan and bank deposits.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and

108

policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
has credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at each end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group's

credit risk is reduced.

In relation to trade receivables, the Group’s concentration
of credit risk by geographical locations is primarily in
PRC. Other than that, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk as trade

receivables consist of a large number of customers.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. BT HE (&)

(CONTINUED)

BHEREEEREREER

5C. Financial risk management objectives and 5C.

policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

For other receivables, credit risk is concentrated in
three counterparties in the PRC in relation to amount
receivable on disposal of associates as disclosed in note
24.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because majority
of the counterparties are either banks of high credit

quality in Hong Kong or state-owned banks in the PRC.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework to
meet the Group's short, medium and long-term funding
and liquidity management requirements. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and

liabilities.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group has short and
medium term bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$59,472,000 (31
HK$59,048,000).

March 2012: approximately
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and

110

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity table

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to

pay.

The maturity analysis for non-derivative financial liabilities
is prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves
at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following tables detail the Group's
expected maturity for its non-derivative financial
assets. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted contractual cash flows of the financial
assets including interest that will be earned on those
assets. The inclusion of information on these non-
derivative financial assets is necessary in order to
understand the Group’s liquidity risk management as the

liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

The amounts included below for variable interest rate
instruments for both non-derivative financial assets and
liabilities are subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates different to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. MBI A (&)
(CONTINUED)
5C. Financial risk management objectives and 5C. iREREEBERBRE
policies (Continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (Continued) B EE R (E)
Liquidity table (Continued) TENESN K (B)
Total
Weighted carrying
Average Total amount
effective Within undiscounted at year
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years  Over 5 years cash flows ended
mE¥HY RER EF
ERA= —FR -BCE —BIE TENE  BRERE BEEE

% HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR FhRR TR TR

As at 31 March 2013 R=Z-=&
ZB=1-H
Non-derivative FITERBEE
financial assets

Trade and bills B HRWER R
receivables BYER - 34,850 - - - 34,850 34,850
Other receivables H iR - 4,169 - - - 4,169 4,169

Amount due from  EWGEERBRRFUR
a non-controlling
shareholder - 696 - - - 696 696
Financial assets FRERELATEAR
at fair value through 2 BT BEE

profit or loss - 11,682 - - - 11,682 11,682
Bank and cash balance R1TRFAEEH 035 73,471 - - - 73471 73471
124,868 - - - 124,868 124,868

Non-derivative FTEHKEE
financial liabilities

Trade payables BARNER - 10,514 - - - 10,514 10,514
Other payablesand ~ EAfER B R

accruals i ER - 7,965 - - - 7,965 7,965
Amount due to non-  JEff FER B FUR

controlling interest - 1,377 - - - 1,377 1,377
Bank borrowings FIEE 7.2 60,638 - - - 60,638 59,472
Short-term interest B SEE

bearing borrowings 8.04 23,627 - - - 23,627 21,869
Convertible notes TARER 12,5 - - - 391,591 391,591 230,569

104,121 - - 391,591 495,712 331,766
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZ—=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. BT H (&)

(CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and 5C. BiREREEBERBE
policies (Continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (Continued) B EEE (E)

Liquidity table (Continued)

REEZZ (&)

Total
Weighted carrying
Average Total amount
effective Within undiscounted at year
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 2-5year  Over 5 years cash flows ended
T REEH ESS
ERF|% —£R/ —ECF —Ehf BENE BEENE BREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THTL THTL THTL FAL FAL FAL
Asat31March 2012 R=B-—%
ZA=t-H
Non-derivative FNENBEE
financial assets
Trade and bills EHEBERR
receivables i ES - 45,688 = - - 45,688 45,688
Other receivables Efh e R 5K - 1,794 - - - 1,794 1,794
Amount due from  EMGEEBRRRFUR
a non-controlling
shareholder - 738 - - - 738 738
Financial assets at ~ BBBREATFEAR
fair value through 2 BIBEE
profit or loss - 74 - - - 74 74
Bank and cash balance $#17 %I & & 0.45 81,815 - - - 81,815 81,815
130,776 - - - 130,776 130,776
Trade payables BHRAER = 9,330 = = = 9,330 9,330
Other payables and ~ EAEREHK
accruals EER - 6,619 - - - 6,619 6,619
Amount due to non-  JEff SRR B TR
controlling interest - 1,460 - - - 1,460 1,460
Bank Borrowings RIEE 7.12 61,133 - - - 61,133 59,048
Convertible notes BESes 1237 - - - 391,591 425,125 206,210
78,542 - - 391,591 503,667 282,667
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #EZ—=%

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investment in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return profiles. The
Group's equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
securities quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. In addition, the management monitors the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise.

Other price risk — Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the

reporting date.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower, the Group's
profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$1,168,000 (2012:
increase/decrease by approximately HK$74,000). This
is mainly due to the changes in fair value of held-for-

trading investments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZ—=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5D. Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

. the fair value of financial assets with standard terms

and conditions and traded on active liquid markets

are determined with reference to quoted market bid

prices; and

o the fair value of other financial assets and

financial liabilities are determined in accordance

with generally accepted pricing models based on

discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates

from observable current market transactions as

input.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments that are measured subsequent to initial

recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based

on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

114

quoted prices in active markets for the same
instrument (i.e., without modification or
repackaging);

quoted prices in active markets for similar
assets or liabilities or other valuation
techniques for which all significant inputs are

based on observable market data; and

valuation techniques for which any significant

input are not bade on observable market data.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. BT HE (&)
(CONTINUED)

5D. A¥1{E (&)

5D. Fair value (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

The following table show an analysis of financial

instruments recorded at fair value by the fair value

REE BN T RAERZ L FE
itE ()

TREREAFED RHIAE DR
FEREZEBTADN:

hierarchy:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-/ i E=/ @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TAT TET
As at 31 March 2013 R-B-=F
=ZA=t-H
Financial asset at fair value EEZELAFEAKZ
through profit or loss NBEE 11,682 - - 11,682
Convertible notes ke - - 230,569 230,569
As at 31 March 2012 AZE——fF
=A=+—H
Financial asset at fair value & EZZELAFEAKRZ
through profit or loss NBEE 741 = = 741
Convertible notes R RE - - 206,210 206,210

For reconciliation of fair value of convertible notes,

please refer to note 33.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the
both years.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 in the both

years.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating segments, based on information
reported to the chief operating decision maker (the directors
of the Company) for the purpose of resource allocation and

performance assessment are presented into two segments.

For manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products
operations, the chief operating decision maker regularly
reviews the performance of the sales revenue from
pharmaceutical products. These operations have been
aggregated into a single operating segment and named
“Manufacturing and sales of pharmaceutical products”.

For iron ore exploration and exploitation operations, the chief
operating decision maker regularly reviews the performance of
the iron ore operation in Mongolia. The Group has acquired
a subsidiary in Indonesia which holds an exclusive right
to manage, refine and sell the iron sand at the respective
iron mine area hold by the non-controlling interest of the
subsidiary. These operations have been aggregated into a
single operating segment and named “lron ore exploration,

exploitation and trading operations”.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and result

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

by reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 March

Manufacturing and sales of
pharmaceutical products

and trading operations

wr & B T R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

DREBRAREE

UTAAEERAREDEZIBAR
KEZDM:

BEZE=A=1+—HLEE

Iron ore exploration, exploitation

Consolidation

HROA BER
EERBEER EHEE &a
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-=F “E——F —E-=F “E--F “E-=f “E—f
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THTL TiEn T TExL T
Segment revenue: ik LN
Sales to external customers HINDRPHE 111,957 113,586 - - 111,957 113,586
Total revenue FTON 111,957 113,586 - - 111,957 113,586
Segment results DEES (13,733) (24,316) (5,983) (2,444) (19,716) (26,760
Unallocated corporate expenses FOBOEEX
Other revenue HefA 516 1,090
Other gains Hi s 43,711 18,034
Other expenses Hips (187,987) (141,348)
Fair value changes on financial assets ~ BEREAFEAEZ
at fair value through profit or loss HHBEECATEED (309) 13
Fair value changes on convertible notes AT RZ%E 7 AFEEH 1,150 27,371
Central administration costs HRATBAC A (6,941) (6,902)
Finance costs BEKK (29,744) (26,872)
Loss before taxation BREAER (199,320) (155,374)
Taxation "R - (202)
Loss for the year TEERR (199,320) (155,576)

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from

external customers. There were no inter-segment sales during

the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZ—=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

ko > N

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. 7HEEHR (&)
(CONTINUED)
Segment revenues and result (Continued) PEWRARFE (&)
Segment results represent the loss suffered by each segment DEEEESEIEMEX 2EE
without allocation of other revenue, other gain, other BRD LA BA - H s - EAth 5
expenses, fair value change on financial assets at fair value HEEERATEARZUBEEZ
through profit or loss, fair value change on convertible notes, ANEEEZY IBRBREECAFEE
central administration costs, finance costs and taxation. This is B R RATEA r‘éﬁ’élﬂ%jﬁ&ﬁﬁ °
the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for W hmEZLERKEER A
the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment TEETERDBER D BERBETGE -
performance.
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets by operating NTAAEEEEREENEEHZ
segments: DA

Iron ore exploration,
exploitation and
trading operation

Manufacturing and sales of

pharmaceutical products Total segment assets

EERMEER HEDR WERESEE PEEELE

At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
RZB-=F | RZ2—Z% ZE-ZE | RID-ZF | RIB-ZE | RZT-Z%
ZR=Z+-B | =A=+-H | ZAR=t-8B | =A=t-B | ZR=+-H | =ZA=1—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAL TER TAT TER THL

ASSETS &
Segment assets PEEE 162,893 157,665 587,736 768,529 750,629 926,194
Unallocated corporate assets RARMEEE 98,722 72,487
849,351 998,681

Liabilities af
Segment liabilities B (97,150) (72,557) (2,836) (2,901) (99,990) (75,458)
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOECEBE (231,776) (207,397)
(331,766) (282,855)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and result (Continued)

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the directors of the Company
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each

reportable segment on the following basis:

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and other unallocated
corporate assets (mainly include property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, cash and bank balances that are used by
the investment holding company and other receivables that are

receivable by the investment holding companies).

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
convertible notes and other unallocated corporate liabilities
(mainly include other payables and accruals borne by the

investment holding companies).
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SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Other segment information

Manufacturing and sales of

pharmaceutical products

Iron ore exploration,
exploitation and
trading operation

fu 2 BME

Other corporate entities

RER (&)

Total segment assets

LERHEER HRHR HERESEE Ht%ER PEEELE
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“E8-Zf|-3—-%|z8-=f | -F--£ | ZB-=f | 2§ | 2B-=£ | =3—-%&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THr T TER T T#Er TR THr T
Additions to property, plant ~ ERME  BE k& E
and equipment 6,065 4,022 2,844 6,277 m 69 9,080 10,368
Depreciation of property, N BERIENE
plant and equipment 14,120 14,300 456 349 201 68 14,777 14,717
Amortisation of prepaid BERRERRER
lease payments 116 116 - - - - 116 116
Provision for impairment BHRKER ZAE
loss on trade receivables BEAE 4,554 3,060 - - - - 4,554 3,060
Provision for impairment Bt EKER ZAE
loss on other receivables BEAE - - - - - 64,000 - 64,000
Provision for impairment REREZAE
loss on mining rights BEAE - - 183,433 66,167 - - 183,433 66,167
Geographical information ih & & R

The Group operates in four principal geographical areas — the

PRC, Hong Kong, Mongolia and Indonesia.

All of the Group’s revenue during the years ended 31 March

2013 and 2012 were generated in the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Geographical information (Continued)

The Group’s information about its non-current assets by
geographical location are detailed below:

wr & B T R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

WEER (&)

AEBEHELEHS 2 FRDAE
AR BT

Non-current assets

IRBEE
2013 2012
—E—-= —ET—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
PRC A 113,662 80,458
Hong Kong BB 155 207
Mongolia E =) 358 183,844
Indonesia e 584,647 582,692
698,822 847,201

Information about major customers FEEZFEH

There is no single external customer amount to 10 per cent or

more of the Group’s revenue during the years ended 31 March

2013 and 2012.

REVENUE

Revenue, which is stated net of value added tax and other

sales taxes and returns,

represents amounts invoiced to

customers for sales of pharmaceutical products during the
years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZ—=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

8. OTHER REVENUE

HA WA

2013 2012

—EgE—= —E——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET AT

Interest income on bank deposits RITEHF 2 WA 102 57
Dividend income from financial asset &EBRIEAFEAE

at fair value though profit or loss R EEZIRB WA 52 59

Sundry income =18 U A 362 974

516 1,090

9. OTHER GAINS

H At YR =%

2013 2012
—E—-=F —EF—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T
Reversal of impairment loss recognised 2 5 F& U5 BE 7k 2 & 32
in respect of trade receivables B {E B 18 i [0 2,723 1,298
Reversal of impairment loss recognised £ i f& U B 3¢ 2 J5i (B /&5 18 1 1B
in respect of other receivables 40,988 =
Fair value change on financial assets  &1Ez5i A EEAEZ
at fair value through profit or loss MBEERTFESE - 13
Fair value change on convertible notes aJ# % = ~ A F{F &
(note) (H1at) 1,150 27,371
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE W B AR 2 W
(note 35) (H1:£35) - 16,571
Exchange gain FE 5 Uz - 165
44,861 45,418
Notes: Wit :

Included in fair value change on convertible notes amount of HK$Nil
(2012: approximately HK$91,000) was the realised gain upon the
conversion of convertible notes.

AEREE ATFEESHEENE R G
BEEHZAEEZATL(ZZE—Z—F:4
91,0008 7T ) 2 B 2 3 Wk o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHmRERMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

10. OTHER EXPENSES 10. B X
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHEIT
Provision for impairment on B 2R AR E
mining right 183,433 66,167
Provision for impairment on B 5 REWAR R 2 RE R
trade receivables 4,554 3,060
Provision for impairment on H th i W AR SR 2 BB B
other receivables - 64,000
Share-based payment expenses VAR 17 A B8 2 A sk 2 - 8,121
187,987 141,348
T s
FINANCE COSTS 1. B & AR
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx T
Interest on bank loans wholly BARAFEXNRKREES Y
repayable within five years RITERAE 4,235 4,744
Imputed interest on convertible notes A ¥ IE Z 4 E E | & 25,509 22,128
29,744 26,872

TMERZERBRAT « —T—=FFR
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GEMFBHRETMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZ—=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

12.LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 12. (RS ATE 1B

2013 2012
—EgE—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET 3T
Directors’ remuneration Ekn 2,611 2,354
Other staff costs Hih 8 TAA 10,832 10,411
Share-based payment expenses VARR 17 /4 B0 2 A 5k 2 - 8,121

Other staff’s retirement benefits Hih 8 T ZiRAKRBAFEIER
scheme contributions 3,403 3,375
Total salaries AR ER 16,846 24,261

Depreciation of property, plant and ME BELZEBITE

equipment 14,777 14,717
Amortisation of prepaid lease T8 15 78 & R I8 # 8

payments 116 116
Total depreciation and amortisation EREHEAR 14,893 14,833
Auditors’ remuneration ZE R B & 450 450
Minimum lease payments under HEMAOT 2 HIEME SR

operating leases 1,014 697
Cost of inventory recognised as an WRRAX 2 FEKAR

expense 90,687 83,060
Fair value change on financial assets &E@mEAFEARZ

at fair value through profit or loss BEEZAFEED 309 =
Exchange loss, net E 5 E1E - F5E 129 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHmRERMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

7 —+.
13.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13.€55M<
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors were ENSENEBANESZMESOT :
as follow:
Salaries and Retirement benefits
Directors’ fees other benefits scheme contributions Total
EsHe FEREMERN BB MR ag
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —T--fF —g-Z=F —T--F —B-ZF —E-=C —E-=F —E--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT TEn THT TR T FHER THT
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky (Chairman 8|5 %5 (25 R

and Chief Executive Officer) 11##) - - 1,300 3323 15 12 1,315 3,335
Mr. Chan Sung Wai (note /) REBEE (W) 161 125 - 925 7 4 168 1,054
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph BERRAE (i)

(note if) 50 325 - 925 2 12 52 1,264
Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong (note ii) — SREU 54 (Afatii) 280 - - - 11 - 291 -
Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony GRAKE (W)

(note fy) 172 - - - 7 - 179 -

663 450 1,300 5173 42 28 2,005 5,651
Non-executive director: FYnES:
Mr. Tong Leung Sang mRERE 150 150 - 202 - = 150 352

Independent non-executive BUkHTES:

directors:

Mr. Lum Pak Sum WRREE 150 150 - 202 - - 150 352
Mr. Yiu Fai Ming (note 1) KBRS (Hitv) - 60 - 202 - - - 262
Mr. Zhang Xianlin REMEE 156 150 - 202 - - 156 352
Mr. Tse Yuk Kong (note vj) HIBTEE (Hitvi) - 6 - 202 - - - 208

Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse DERTE (Hvi)
(note vii) 150 60 - - - - 150 60
456 426 - 808 - - 456 1,234
1,269 1,026 1,300 6,183 42 28 2,611 1,237
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMFBHRETMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z —F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

13.

126

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Chan Sung Wai retired on 21 September 2012.

(i)~ Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph resigned on 31 May 2012.

(iii) ~ Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong was appointed on 6 July 2012.

(iv)  Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony was appointed on 16 October
2012.

(v) Mr. Yiu Fai Ming was not re-elected on 9 August 2011.

(vi)  Mr. Tse Yuk Kong retired on 9 August 2011.

(vii)  Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse were appointed on 8 November
2011.

During the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012, no
remunerations were paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived any emoluments during the years ended 31 March
2013 and 2012.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wr & B T R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

14.EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

15.

The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid individuals

for the year included two (2012: three) executive directors

of the Company, whose emoluments are included in note 13

above. The aggregate emoluments of the remaining three

(2012: two) highest paid individuals are as follows:

14.EEfN S

AEEREERTFATZHMERERE
ARARME(ZE—ZF  =&)H1T
EE HMSFBEN EXHE13 - H
BB (ZE—ZF MB)ER=SFTA
TrMeREWT

2013 2012

—E—= —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FE T

Salaries and other benefits e kHMmER 1,462 882
Retirement benefits scheme RIRTEFIET B3R

contributions 31 24

1,493 906

Their emoluments were all within HK$1,000,000.

During the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the

®ZE 2 B4£ 9 71,000,00078 TT AR ©

RBE-_ZTE—=Fr_FT—_—F=A
—t—HBHLEFE AEEHMEINATFE
HREHFATHESESFEEMA IR

Group. A & B i 2 22 -
TAXATION 15. Bi 18
2013 2012
—E—-=F —ET——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER FHEIT
Current tax BV EA T 18 - =
Under provision of the PRC enterprise Ri@EFE R B EMEH
income tax in prior years BiET R - 202
Tax charge for the year REEFIERZ - 202

TMERZERBRAT « —T—=FFR
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GEMFBHRETMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZ—=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

15.

128

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group’s operations in
Hong Kong had no assessable profit for the year.

Subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2013 and
2012.

Subsidiary in Mongolia is subject to corporate income tax at
10% for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012.

Subsidiary in Indonesia is subject to corporate income tax at
25% for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012.

The Group has tax losses arising in the PRC of approximately
HK$372,419,000 (2012: HK$227,816,000) that are available
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised due to the unpredictability of the future profit
stream.

15. %8 (&)

HRAEEREEZEBRFERNLE
A ERBOE A - BB S B 75 5
KB AN EVUEL A

HE_ZT—=FRKR_FT——F=
=t+—BULFE FRZMNBARARK
25 %A R B ERTEH -

HE-2-=FR-F-—F=4
Z+—BEFE Ra2WBAREAR
10% BN EERFH -

HE-T-—=4#R-F——#=§
=+—BUEFE HEZHWEBRARER
25%BF BRI -

AEBRFBEELEZHREEBED
372,419,000 T (=T — = F:
227,816,000/ 70) A] A A 3K 85 1 3R /&5
B2 AR BRERT AN - REFHIEE
B R 3R s ) SRR 2 A AT T8 R T I

Taxation for the years are reconciled to the loss before tax as FEMIEERTAIEEYRAT
follows:
2013 2012
—E—-=F —ZE—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHET
Loss before taxation BrEi Bl E 18 199,320 155,374
Tax at the applicable income tax rate  RERAEHREAE 2B 34,374 37,132
Tax effect of expenses not deductible BLFELEM 5 NEMBF S 2
for tax purposes HMIEFE (32,373) (29,365)
Tax effect of income not taxable for ~ FAFIEM 5 HBRMRBA Z
tax purposes MEZE 8,609 4,904
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FREFER ZHEEIE 2
MEZE (10,610) (12,671)
Under provision in respect of PRC tax BAFESBEPEKEZ L
in prior year BE - 202
Tax charge for the year RNEEHIBERZ - 202

Asia Resources Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2013
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r & B T R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z —F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

16.LOSS PER SHARE 16. BIREE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to equity holders of the Company is based on the
following data:

AABIEDRFHAARESRERNL#
SBEBRTIRTIBIERE

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
(restated)
(&731)
Loss Ei1a
Loss for the year attributable to the — BLFFESREAREEZ A A A
owners of the Company for the BEABEFANEE
purpose of basic loss per share 197,967 154,276
‘000 ‘000
Weighted average number of ordinary #ietE&MEKREIE 2
shares for the purpose of basic loss T AR I HE T B
per share 155,150 153,242

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic and diluted loss per share for the
years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012 has been adjusted for
the effect of share consolidation approved on 31 May 2013.

The Company’s outstanding convertible notes and share
options were excluded in the calculation of diluted loss per
share because the effect of the Company’s outstanding

convertible notes and share options was anti-dilutive.

TMERZERBRAT « —T—=FFRH
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GEMBHmRERMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZ—=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

17.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % -BEKRZE

Furniture,
fixtures
and office Leasehold Motor Plantand  Construction
Buildings ~ equipment improvements vehicles machinery in progress Total
®E HFAR
BF  RAZERE HEVEEE RE  BEREE ERIE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TB TBL THL THL THR TAL
Cost A
At 1 April 2011 RZE——FMA—H 80,928 6,038 993 3,253 60,860 - 152,072
Additions B 20 955 669 1,772 6,952 - 10,368
Exchange adjustments ERTACE 2,897 241 - 86 2,179 = 5,403
At 31 March 2012 and RZZE—=F
1 April 2012 ZA=+-Bk
—T-ZfMA—H 83,845 7,234 1,662 5111 69,991 - 167,843
Additions R 852 1,608 19 372 6,204 25 9,080
Disposals HE - (168) = = = = (168)
Exchange adjustments ERA LS 365 35 - (338) 463 - 525
At 31 March 2013 R-B-=fF
=B=+-H 85,062 8,709 1,681 5,145 76,658 25 177,280

Accumulated depreciation Z:HFTEREE
and impairment

At 1 April 2011 —Z-——4%MA—H 28,890 4,593 993 1,146 31,710 = 67,332
Charge for the year Ev\ﬁﬁj 4,593 1,065 33 1,061 7,965 - 14,717
Exchange adjustments ERAEEES 1,034 179 - 35 1,135 - 2,383
At 31 March 2012 and RZE—_F
1 April 2012 =A=+—-RAk

—T-——EmMA—A 34,517 5,837 1,026 2,242 40,810 = 84,432
Charge for the year FAZH 4,494 1,134 129 881 8,139 - 14,777
Eliminated on disposals 6 I 8 - (168) - - - - (168)
Exchange adjustments X 275 41 - (90) 337 = 563
At 31 March 2013 R-B-=f%

=A=+-H 39,286 6,844 1,155 3,033 49,286 = 99,604
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 March 2013 R-B-=%

=ZA=t+-H 45,776 1,865 526 2,112 27,372 25 77,676
At 31 March 2012 RZT—ZF

=A=t—H 49,328 1,397 636 2,869 29,181 = 83,411
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17.

18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

The Group has pledged building having a carrying amount of
approximately HK$27,229,000 (2012: HK$29,789,000) and plant and
machinery having a carrying amount of approximately HK$25,145,000
(2012: HK$32,746,000) to secure bank borrowings granted to the

r & B T R R B R

E=F-SHEZA=+—AUEE

17. 9% - BEKRE (&)

Kiat -

AEBEDEMEMEEL27,229,000% T
(ZZ— —%4:29,789,000/8T) 2 1BF &
BR T (A 4925,145,0008 L (=T — — 4 :
32,746,000 70) 2 BB R #2E  EAIR T

Group (for details, please refer to note 30).

AEEZRITIERZER (FEFBEF2H

Bf5£30) o
TU S5 o 2
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REW
HK$'000
TAT
Cost A
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and RZE——FWOWA—H ZT—=F
1 April 2012 —A=+—-HR=-T——FMA—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 34) W BE bt B A &) (H15E34) 40,985
Exchange adjustment PE W 58 B 146
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=H=+—H 41,131
Accumulated depreciation and impairment i ITEREE
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and RZE——FWWA—H ZT—=F
1 April 2012 —A=+—-HBR=-T——FWMA—H -
Charge for the year FAZH 254
At 31 March 2013 RZZE—=%=A=+—H 254
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 March 2013 R-—ZFE—=F=HA=+—H 40,877

At 31 March 2012

R-E——F=H=+—H

TMERZERBRAT « —T—=FFRH
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or & B T R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZ=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

19. A (S HE KA

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise: REEZBNEEFIAEBRE:
2013 2012
=2-= T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: BEAINZHE T3 -
Medium term lease FRERFE 49 4,051 4,139
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RIFR®RE BT :
Current portion (Note 24) BNERER & (K7 it24) 116 116
Non-current portion JEBNHA =0 5 3,935 4,023
4,051 4,139

The Group has pledged land use rights having a carrying
amount of approximately HK$4,051,000 as at 31 March 2013
(2012: HK$4,139,000) to secure bank loans granted to the
Group (for details, please refer to note 30).

R-BE—=%=ZA=+—H8 K&E
B 4K 4 BR M {8 494,051,000 70 (=&
— —£:4,139,0005% JT ) Z & i F A
B IEARTASEZRITEEZEE
(BB BRE2HMIE30) ©
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GEMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z —F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

20.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. B EE
Exclusive right Total
BRER et
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHTT
Cost R
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012, R-ZT——FmMA—A-
1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 —E——#=ZA=+—8"
—EZHFMWA-BR
—T—=F=A=+—H 576,334 576,334
Accumulated amortisation and Zit B REE
impairment
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012, RZZE——FMA—H-
1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 —E——-—F=ZA=+—8"

—E-—FEA—ABK
—T—=%=ZHA=+—H - =

Carrying amounts IR EE
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=%F=HA=+—H 576,334 576,334
At 31 March 2012 R—ZE——F=A=+—H 576,334 576,334
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GEMBHmRERMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z—=%F

20

134

—SES A= —AIEE

.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

Exclusive right represents the Deed of Statement and Power of
Attorney dated 12 September 2009 and made between PT. Indo
Modern Mining Sejahtera (“Indo”), the holder of the operation license
in the mining are located in Lumajang, East Java, Indonesia, and PT.
Dampar Golden International (“PT. Dampar”), pursuant to which, Indo
grants exclusive rights and authorities to PT. Dampar to manage and
arrange all activities in the mining area on behalf of Indo.

Exclusive right is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated
useful economic life. The useful economic life of the exclusive rights
was estimated with reference to the validity of the operation license
held by Indo. The operation license was valid for ten years from 21 July
2010 and the holder was entitled to apply for renewal for two times

with a 10-year term each.

No amortization was provided for the year ended 31 March 2013 as
the iron ore mining operation has not yet been commenced during the
year.

The Group is required to assess any indication of impairment of the
end of each reporting period. The Group has completed its annual
impairment test for the exclusive right, no impairment loss was
recognized for the year ended 31 March 2013, as the recoverable
amount exceed the carrying amount. The recoverable amount of the
exclusive right is referenced to valuation report issued by Peak Vision
Appraisals Limited, independent qualified valuers, as at 31 March 2013
which the exclusive right has been measured based on the value in use
calculation.

The valuation uses cash flow projections based on financial
estimates covering a four-year period, and a discount rate
of 11.04% (2012: 15.59%). The cash flows beyond four-
year period are expected with no growth rate (2012: Nil).
Management considered the above assumptions and valuation

and also taken into account the business plan going forward.

#iEE (&)

Hrat -

%8 X # M #EPT. Indo Modern Mining
Sejahtera (TIndo J) (/& 7 EN e 5 JTUEE
AREYERRZEETAEZRABEAN)
EAPT. Dampar Golden International ([PT.
Dampar | ) R=ZEZENLF LA+ =HF
VZBARZHREES B IndomPT.
Dampar#% i 8 X # ) & 4 1 AR R IndoE
BREFERBERETZMERD-

BREMNINEGAAIRKEFHANE
BOREH BRENZAIRKEFHRIZE
H IndoP 5 48 & 71 7] i 2 B R 4 17 b
o REAEZERAH-_T—TFLA
“t—REFABTE MISEAGESRR
BHERR GRBRAETF-

HRFEANEEARAREEEBHRFAR &K
REBEE-—ZT—=F=-A=+—HILFETE
sHRm-

AREBANE TS ARF AT TRETR
AEEDEREBRENZ FERERR -
RBE-_ZT-—=F=A=+—HILFELE
HRRERE - RE AR UKD 2588 H R E
BE-BREMZAKE@SENES2EBILE
BRMAEMREFEERAFANR T —=F
ZHA=T-RAELZEERSHE MBEXR
EMNERBEEREESETETAGE-

Ik i B T 3R FA AR 5 2 10 4F B 2 B 7
TR EmETER - REEIE E11.04%
(ZE——4%:1559% )t & - E%ﬁ@
FH 2B REEHATSER (=2
——F:T) - FEEEERE Lt &ﬂ
MEE MEF RARKRERRE -
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r & B T R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

The mining rights represent the rights to conduct mining

activities in Tumurtei, Khuder Soum, Selenge Aimag, Mongolia.

The mining right is amortised using the unit-of-production

method based on the total proven and probable mineral

reserves, under the assumption that the Group can renew the

mining right for two successive additional periods of 20 years

each after the initial granted period of 30 years, till all proven

and probable mineral reserves have been mined.

No amortisation was provided for the year ended 31 March

2013 (2012: Nil) as commercial production of the mine has not

yet commenced during the year.

TMERZERBRAT « —T—=FFRH

21.MINING RIGHTS 21. BRIERE
HK$'000
FHT
Cost 28N
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012, 1 April 2012 RZE——FMOMA—HB ZT—-_%F
And 31 March 2013 =A=+—RH —E2—=—FMmWA—H
R—ZZB—-—=%=R=+—H 260,015
Accumulated amortisation and impairment AT #EREE
At 1 April 2011 RZZE——FMHA—H (10,415)
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE (66,167)
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 R=FBE—=—F=A=+—H80Kk
—E-——-FWPA—H (76,582)
Impairment loss recognised EHERREEE (183,433)
At 31 March 2013 R—E—=F=H=+—H (260,015)
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 March 2013 R=-B-Z=f=ZA=+—8H -
At 31 March 2012 RZE-——F=A=+—H 183,433

FRUE#E £ X & Tumurtei > Khuder
Soum ’ Selenge Aimagi T EAE /R &) 2
R

PRUEHE T BN AN B A R 1] 2 %30
FHREEEBMREEEIN20FH
REREEEEZCRBRATEEE
RECHRZER RESHFPARAE
BEARENEERMRETHE

HRFAZBLRARABREE &
BE_T—=F=A=+—HILLFE
WEFTIREHE (ZF——F )
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

21.

136

MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

The Group is required to assess any indication of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. The Group has completed
its annual impairment test for the mining right by comparing
the recoverable amount of the mining right to its carrying
amount as at 31 March 2012. Impairment loss in respect
of mining right of approximately HK$183,433,000 (2012:
HK$66,167,000) was recognised during the year ended 31
March 2013 by reference to the valuation report issued by
LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyor Limited, independently qualified
professional valuers, as at 31 March 2013 which the mining
right has been measured by the value in use calculation using

the asset-based approach.

On 24 December 2012, the Group has received a letter dated
18 December 2012 from the Ministry of Environment and
Green Development of Mongolia (the “Ministry”), notifying
the Group that the Iron Mining Licence is located within the
protected area (the “Protected Area”). The Board subsequently
sought for advice from its legal advisers as to Mongolia laws
and received legal opinions on 31 December 2012 and 10
January 2013, and was advised that although the license fee
for the year ended 14 November 2013 is paid and there is no
outstanding fees, encumbrances and third party interests over
the Iron Mining Licence, according to the provisions of a new
law on “Prohibition of mining and exploration activities in river
heads and banks, water basins and forests”, the Iron Mining
Licence is subject to the new law and shall be cancelled since
the Mongolia Mine is located in the Protected Area. However,
no effective date of such cancellation is advised and the board
of directors of the Company is in the course of seeking further
clarification from the Ministry. As for the abovementioned
issues, the directors of the Company considered that the
mining right should be fully impaired since there is no
commercial value. Details please refer to the Company’s

announcement dated 2 January 2013.

21. BRIEHE (&)

REBAR S RE BRI EERBE
FR-AEEEZRBERBEER-Z
——F=ZA=+t—AzukbszEa
HEFEmEETLRM TK HERERE 2
FERENRA REE-T—=F=FA
=+—HLEFE BEERRBEEZR
B E538 49183,433,0008 L (=& — —
% 166,167,000 ) * W2 EBILE
BREEGEMABITASMER QA
R =F=ZfF=+—HB%T2HE
R E MEEECRRBEERE
FETEZEREBEFE T AR

RZE-—ZF+-_A-_+HWHAB &
ARAERBRERERZEER
(Ministry of Environment and Green
Development of Mongolia) (5% &8 )
BHRR-_ZT-——F+t-_A+t/\BZHX
4+ 3B AN & B S8R B AR R T L PR
#E([RER)AN-EFGHEEM
HERR L EROEEBHESRER
YR-F-——F+-_A=+t—HEK=
Z—=F-A+BRINEEER HE
ARBEEBNBE_ZT—=F+—
ATHOBZzARER BHEMRAR
WEEMEAZNER ERAENE
=R EREBABR IR R
A KRR M R AR TR R S By IR
B 2 FOERRG AR R EEELA
RRE R - EER KRR IEEM
R R SH o AT AN AL ARE
EMBEBTHZERBE MARRE
EQrEEMZBSRKE-—FZEE - AR
PlEE ARABEER R KEER
BERE RASHITERXEBEE-F
AHER2HARABEHR - —=
F—AZRZAM-
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

A=

22.INVENTORIES 22. 78
2013 2012
=2-= —F=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Raw materials R 5,943 4,269
Packaging materials and consumables B & 5% H 901 4,887
Finished goods 2% i 10,670 5,898
17,514 15,054

23

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group has not
written off obsolete finished goods (2012: Nil).

. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

BE_Z—=F=A=1+—HILFE"
RE B EMOBOB HEK M (ZF—=

E) .

B ZRWRTR K ERER

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Trade receivables 5 e ER R 44,104 56,911
Less: accumulated impairment Ji: BETRVE (17,208) (15,256)
26,896 41,655

Bills receivables discounted/endorsed  Hfi& =4 2 BEIR ~
with recourse BHERRKEE 7,954 4,033
34,850 45,688

TMERZERBRAT « —T—=FFRH
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z—=%F

23.

138

—=F= A=+ —ALEE

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit. Invoices
are normally settled within 90 days to 180 days of issuance,
except for certain well established customers. The following
is an aging analysis of trade receivables, net of impairment
losses, and bills receivable discounted/endorsed with recourse
at the end of the reporting period:

.%%FEH&EE

MK EWRE

)

BERFXZREEMNR -BRETERAR
HZBRBEIN —MBABREHELEZ0
HEI1SOHRNEHEER - RWMEBAKRZ
B RKERR (MBRRESER) KM
BRECZHR BERRERZER
DT

2013 2012

=2-= T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&T FET

0 to 90 days 0%290H 23,290 23,626
91 to 180 days 91£180H 8,044 10,983
181 to 365 days 181%£365H 3,516 9,358
1 to 2 years (Evk= - 1,721
34,850 45,688

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and credit quality attributed to customers are
reviewed periodically. At 31 March 2013, approximately 68%
(2012: 67%) of the trade receivables are neither past due nor
impaired, and are assessed to be of satisfactory credit quality
with reference to the past track records.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK3,516,000 (2012: HK$11,079,000) which are past due at
the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The amounts are mainly comprised amounts
due from certain well established customers, which the Group
normally grants an extension to them. The Group does not

hold any collateral over theses balances.

REMEAFELA  NEB g (HE
BEPZEEER VTEEREFPZEER
H-RPEGAT REREEERERE
Higd R=ZZT—=F=A=+—H"
fﬁ%%ﬂﬂlﬁ%w\%@%%(::*:i:
67% ) K@ HA TR AR E - WIRIRE4E
R ENHMAEEMEZEEE R

AEEESRBEREHBIELERT
B/ #3,516,0008 T (=T — 4
11,079,000/ 7t ) B R4 H 89 2 %50 85
RAEEHNAIELREBEREZE
WER - ZEREFERRERIETA
RIFBERF (AEE—METHESE
EH)ZHRBE - AEBITERZSEH
BHEMERR-
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but

r & B T R R B R

E-F-=F=A=+—AULFE

B ZRUIRR KR EREE

(%)

BB ERBEZE S ERRRR

not impaired 54
2013 2012
=2-= —F=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
181 to 365 days 181&365H 3,516 9,358
1 to 2 years 1224 - 1,721
3,516 11,079

Movement in the provision for impairment loss
recognised in respect of trade receivables

B 5 EWRN Y C R R ERER
B2

2013 2012

—E—= —E——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTERT T

Balance at beginning of the year RE ) 2 i8R 15,256 13,010
Impairment losses recognised E SRR

on trade receivables B #ERREEE 4,554 3,060

Impairment losses reversed B (B 5 18 #E (2,723) (1,298)

Exchange adjustments & A A 121 484

Balance at end of the year RERZ &% 17,208 15,256

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in credit quality of the trade
receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to
the end of the reporting period. Included in the allowance for
doubtful debts are all individually impaired trade receivables
which have either been placed under liquidation or in severe
financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.

TMERZERBRAT « —T—=FFRH

REEE S RKEERZ AT @R -
SEEEEENSRTEEE BEG
EREHRANE ZRUWER 2 E[IE
BEEEEY REBEREENERE
BREBEMHRE A @R RE
B 5 B AR - AR B B AL F AR
FAERERm-
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z—=%F

23.

140

—=F= A=+ —ALEE

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group has
recovered trade receivables of approximately HK$2,723,000
(2012: HK$1,298,000) which has be impaired in previous

years.

Aging of impaired trade receivables

23. B Z RUWIRA K BN E &
(%)

REE-_ZT—=F=ZA=+—HItF
BN AEBERERBAFEERE
2B 5 EWRF%2,723,0008 T (=
T — 4 :1,298,000/87T) °

EREE S EWRNRE

2013 2012

—=E—= —E—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&T FETT

1 to 2 years 1225 17,208 15,256
Transfer of financial assets BEUWKEE

At 31 March 2013, the Group's bills receivables of
approximately HK$7,954,000 (2012: HK$4,033,000) had
been transferred to unrelated suppliers with recourse. As the
Group is still exposed to credit risk on these bills receivable,
the Group continues to recognise the full carrying amount of
the bills receivable and record associated trade payables of
approximately HK$7,954,000 (2012: HK$4,033,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

RZE—=%F=A=+—H &%
B #7,954,0008 L (=T — =4 :
4,033,000 7t ) 2 Bt 18 2= #E FE W I 9%
EEETHEBEZHER BRAE
ENAAEZERBEE 2 EERR
WA E B BB RS ISR R 28
REWEECEREREEEZES
JE R 3K 497,954,000 T (—Z T — —
% :4,033,0008 ) ABR°
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

r & B T R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

24, FEFFIE

BERHAE
Wy B 5K

2013 2012
—E—-=F —EF—=

HK$000 HK$'000
FET FABT

Amount receivable on disposal of & — SRR 2 ERERK
an associate (note) (B1:%) 23,012 64,000
Deposits paid AR & 421 424
Prepayments TR 7,038 4,542
Other receivables H th e U BR 3R 4,243 1,868
Prepaid lease payments (note 19) TR ERIE (A:£19) 116 116
34,830 70,950
Less: Impairment recognised (note) B BRERIBE (M) (23,086) (64,074)
11,744 6,876

Note:

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group has disposed of the
interest in associates for a total consideration of HK$180,000,000.
At 31 March 2012, the outstanding amount was approximately
HK$64,000,000 and a full impairment was made during the year
ended 31 March 2012.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group has entered a Share
Transfer Agreement with the debtor as mentioned in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements. Upon the completion of the Transfer
(as defined hereinafter), the debtor is still liable to repay the remaining
balance of approximately HK$23,012,000 within the 24 months from
the date of the Share Transfer Agreement. Since the remaining amount
was still outstanding as at 31 March 2013, the directors consider that
the reversal of provision for impairment is made to the extent of the
amount off set under the Share Transfer Agreement of approximately
HK$40,988,000.

TMERZERBRAT « —T—=FFRH

Htiz

HE_ZZEN\F=A=1+—HIFEE" XK
SEHEHEERBE AR 2R BN E
#180,000,000 L- R =T —=—F=H
=+—H - KR{EEFKIELR64,000,000%8
T ERBEE_TE——F=ZA=+—H8It
FRERNELRERE -

BHE-_ZT =—€=-A=+—HLEE HWw
A WIS RR M R34 AL - AE B EHEER A
R — M RMEEGE RNER(ERRT
X)) FER & BIEADARROEZERER
BRfERT —+PU{E A N{EE &R EE4123,012,000
BT -HRZBRER-_E—=F=A=+—
BIMAKEE EFRA AELREREHR
B] = AR IR A% 10 85 % 177 -5 K 45 4940,988,0007%
=c
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z —F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

25.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 25. EFEBmBR A FEARZH
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BEE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong R & £ Z A
at quoted bid price B ILWRE 11,682 741
26.BANK BALANCES AND CASH 26. SRITHEBRNEE
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and FARTEREBR S REASEREZ
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three RE RIRTISEFE035% (ZF—=
months or less and carry interest at market rates which was F:0.45% ) 5t B 1 FR 2 AR R Al 7 = (A
0.35% (2012: 0.45%) per annum during the year. AT ZEHRITHER
Included in the bank balances and cash as at 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—HZRT
were amounts in Renminbi of approximately HK$27,474,000 HEHEkRe BEAAREFTEZR
(2012: HK$10,743,000) which are not freely convertible into TH 427,474,000 L (ZF — = F:
other currencies. 10,743,000 7T) - ARETEEEBE
BREMEY -
At the end of the reporting period, no bank deposits (2012: RIERR MERTER(ZE—=
HK$Nil) have been pledged to secure short-term bank FTHT) BRI ARG BRRITE

A

borrowings. Ko
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBFBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013

4= —=

oy —

SHES A=+ —AIFE

TRADE PAYABLES 27. B 5 TR FX
2013 2012
=2-= —F=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
Trade payables g EMIRR 10,514 9,330

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the end

RBEPRZE 5 RN ERKRER DN

of the reporting period: LUNNE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —EF——F
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
0 to 90 days 0Z90H 8,228 6,282
91 to 180 days 912 180H 737 274
181 to 365 days 181%E365H 67 775
Over 365 days HRiE365H 1,482 1,999
10,514 9,330

The average credit period on purchases is 3 months (2012: 3

BEFYOGEEHR=ZBA(ZZF—=

months). F:=A)-
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28 HitEN R R EFTE M
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$000
FHERT FET
Value-added tax payable FE B E R X 1,095 99
Accruals FEETE R 1,405 1,330
Other payables Hfth & A AR 3K 5,465 5,378
7,965 6,807

TMERZERBRAT « —T—=FFRH
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #Z—=%F

29. AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) A NON-

30.

144

—SES A= —AIEE

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

The amount due from a non-controlling shareholder is interest

free, unsecured and recoverable on demand.

AR IR R K E

29 fEl / (FEfY) — B FE 12

BU—RIFEBRBRRZFBRRE &

R N B E SR g

The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder is interest Rt —BIFERRE 2 RIBRE L &
free, unsecured and repayable on demand. KRR EEREEER
/= Jtt 4
BANK BORROWINGS 30.8RITEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Bank borrowings RITIEE
— secured —HHEF 59,472 59,048
The borrowings are repayable f& &2 @RI T
as follows:
Within one year —F R 59,472 59,048
In the second year REZFA - =
59,472 59,048
Less: Amount due for settlement BNt ZEANERER
S 2E (2 SA 7S
within 12 months (shown éi%;iwm”'“@
R
under current liabilities) (59,472) (59,048)
Amount due for settlement after R+ — 18 A 1% 3 4
P
12 months CLra A - =
Bank borrowings at: BRTIRASRETRZ
|ITIEE
— floating interest rates —FBF X 59,472 59,048
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GEMBFBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2013

30. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

31.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loans are all
denominated in RMB, which is the functional currency of the

group entity.

The contractual floating interest rates in respect of bank

borrowings were within the following ranges:

30.8R1TEE (

4= —=

E—F—=FE= A= —AIFE

7= )

M=

AEERTERZEAEGNEEE
BEEEARKHE-

RITEEZANFHNEREATEHE

A -

2013 2012
—E—-Z=F —EF——F
Bank borrowings RITEE 7.2% 6.9% -7.9%

The Group has pledged certain property, plant and equipment
and period lease payments as stated in notes 17 and 19

respectively.

SHORT-TERM INTEREST BEARING
BORROWINGS

NS BIAM FE17 R 19FTFIIR » REE
BEEFEETYE BEEREARTEN

HERE -

3. EHFTEEE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHETT
Unsecured interest bearing borrowings K&t B (& E
— repayable within one year —BER—FRNEER 21,869 -

TMERZERBRAT « —T—=FFRH
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= A
o=

For the year ended 31 March 2013

B 95 R 3= Bt 5

BE_F—=

#=

A=+—HIFE

31.SHORT-TERM INTEREST BEARING 3. B HAGtEEE (&)
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
The contractual fixed interest rates in respect of short-term B BEBECAENBEEREELT
interest bearing borrowings were within the following ranges: 3@% :
2013 2012
—E—-=F —T—=
Short-term interest bearing borrowings %2 8zt B & 8.04% =

32.

146

The carrying amounts of the Group’s short-term interest

bearing borrowings are denominated in RMB, which is the

functional currency of the group entity.

AEEZEHFAREEZEREET N
SEERBZEEE ARKE

SHARE CAPITAL 32. IR
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
TERER -]
Authorised: JETE RS
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012, RZE——FMHA—B"
1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013, —E—-F=HA=+—H"
ordinary of HK$0.05 each —E-—FHA—HBRK
—E—=F=ZA=+—8"
FREEC.05B L2 EBE 10,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETREERA:
At 1 April 2011 R-ZZTE—FMA—H 3,698,745,758 184,937
Conversion of convertible notes B2 41 ] A TR 180,000,000 9,000
At 31 March 2012, 1 April 2012 and R-_Z——#=A=+—8"
31 March 2013 —T-——_FWPA—BK
—E—=#=ZA=+—H 3,878,745,758 193,937
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r & B T R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 29 September 2010, the Company issued convertible
notes due on 28 September 2017 with a principal amount of
HK$546,750,000, which is interest free. The convertible notes
were issued as part of the consideration for acquisition of
PT. Dampar. The convertible notes contain two components,
liability and equity elements, and are convertible into fully
paid ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.05 each of
the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.1863
per share, subject to adjustment. The effective interest
rate is approximately 9.84%. The convertible notes are not
redeemable by the note holder(s) or the Company.

The movement of the liability component of the convertible

notes for the year is set out below.

33. 7R EE

R-ZE—TFAA-_+NB AQFHE
177N & A /546,750,00078 70 WA =
E—+tFNAAZ+NBEHBZE2ET
BRER - BT R ERERKEPT.
Damparf Bz — M - AT R EHE
EmE BEaERERD  WATR
F &R E SRR 0.18638 T (A] F
) BB A AN RS REE.05E T
CEREBR - BREFELAR9.84% -
RBREBRTAIBAERIFAEARAR
A)MEMD o

TR AT RRRIEA G 2 E T
LIRNE

HK$'000

TATT

At 1 April 2011 R—ZE——FMA—H 229,980
Interest charged F B 22,128
Converted into shares during the year imiﬁ;%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ (18,527)
Fair value changes NEEES) (27,371)
At 31 March 2012 RZE—=—F=A=+—H 206,210
Interest charged F B 25,509
Fair value changes NEEEH (1,150)
At 31 March 2013 R=-E—=%=H=+—H 230,569

The fair value of the convertible notes issued has been arrived
on the basis of a valuation carried out on the date of issue
by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, independent professional
valuers not connect with the Group. The effective interest
rate are in the range of 12.37% to 12.50% (2012: 9.91% to
12.37%).

TMERZERBERAT « —T—=FFR

EBITAIMRER 2 AT ETRERER
SR E 2 B B EMER R
HERARNEITHEARTEIT 2 (HEE
o BBEAMENTMR12.37%E12.50%

TE—F:991%E12.37% )2
f] o
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

34.

148

HE-F—=F=A=—AI5F

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION
OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 3 August 2012, Bestime Systems Limited (“Bestime
Systems”), a subsidiary of the Company and Mr. Zhou Yu
Kang (“Mr. Zhou") entered into a conditional share transfer
agreement (the “Share Transfer Agreement”) in pursuant
to Bestime Systems would take up the entire issued share
capital in Conmet International Real Estate Limited (“Conmet
International”) and its subsidiary in order to withdraw the
claim under the writ summons issued by Bestime Systems on
16 April 2012 at the High Court of Hong Kong (the “Writ")
and to offset part of the outstanding balance of approximately
HK$64,000,000 due from Mr. Zhou to Bestime Systems (the
“Outstanding Balance”) (collectively the “Transfer”). The

Transfer was completed on 22 January 2013.

Conmet International has not carried out any significant
business transactions since their incorporation. In the opinion
of the directors, the Transfer did not constitute an acquisition
of business which the Group principally acquired the properties
through the acquisition. Therefore, the acquisition was not
accounted for as a business combination in accordance with

the requirements of HKFRS 3 Business Combinations.

34.

ERWIEKNBARWES
ENREE

RZZE—Z=—%F/\H =H ' Bestime
Systems Limited ( [Bestime Systems |)
(Apalz—BWEBRAR)HEFERE
EE(TAEED L —HEKER
hEZEHE ((ROHOEEHZE]) &
it * Bestime Systems# 32 B Conmet
International Real Estate Limited
(IConmet International |) % H ¥ BB
NAIZEH B BHITRA  LEE S
Bestime Systemsid =L — —F [0 A
TARBRBEASEERED 2EMSik
(IZ2MIBT2RELKIEALE
JE it Bestime SystemsZ &B 17 7K (& & #
X #764,000,000% 7T ([ REEHFK])
(e mEE]) #EEN T —=
F-—HAZt+ZHZEK"

Conmet International & & ffft BX 32 A 2k
WEETENEARNERD - EERA
ERWEEN —BEASEXIEZEBZ
WHE R 2 2 W - At - 1R
BBV EREERNEIRRFESH IR
T BB EARBERE G-
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—F—=F=H=+—HIFFE

34. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND 34. EBWEHBARIWERE
LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION EREE (&)
OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired RRZPABAZABINEERAGZ
in the transaction are as follows: NEEWT:
2013
—E—-=F
HK$'000
FHET
Net assets acquired: EWBEEEZEE:
Property, plant and equipment e E =S 40,985
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHE % 3
Fair value of net assets BEFEZATE 40,988
Satisfied by: Zft:
Amount receivable on disposal of HE — RS QR 2 B IE
an associate (note 24) (B15t24) 40,988
Net cash inflow from the acquisition: REWBZ2BRSRANTHE:
Cash consideration paid ENRENRE -
Cash and bank balances acquired Frii g 2 3R & RIR1TEE 81 3
3
Note: HyiE
During the year ended 31 March 2013, no turnover and loss was REBE-T—=F=A=+—HIEFE H
contributed by Conmet International and its subsidiary as it has not A Conmet International R KB A & 8 UL
carried out any significant business transaction since the acquisition. BRI EFRREFMNEAEHR S B E
EEEXERER-
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B 95 R 3R Bt 5

35.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 18 March 2011, the Group entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement to dispose the entire interest in Bright
Central Investments Limited (the “Disposal”) at a consideration
of HK$30,000,000, which shall be satisfied in cash. The

Disposal was completed on 16 May 2011.

The carrying amount of the assets and liabilities disposed of in

the transaction are as follows:

HE-F—=F=A=—AIFF

35. HEKME A 7

RZZE——F=A+NB X&EH
AN — M ARG EEHGEAERE
30,000,000 7T (AR € ) HE
Bright Central Investments LimitedZ &

MER((HEFHE]) - HEFHER

—E——FRAt+NEEK-

-

RXGFMEEZEERBEREE

2012
—ET——%F
HK$'000
FHT
Net assets disposed of: FEEZEEFE:

Property, plant and equipment Y3 B K 45,912
Prepaid lease payment TE & /I8 2,108

Deposit for acquisition of property, plant and WHEME BERRE2IESE
equipment 5,578
Inventories T8 15,778
Trade and bills receivables Z S RBERRERER 14,040
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables A FRIE - e R E b U BR R 40,450
Bank balances and cash SRITHEBNIRS 6,124
Trade and bills payables EORNERIEMNEE (17,237)
Other payables and accruals H fth & A 5018 K & 5T B A (40,368)
Bank borrowings RITEE (53,471)
18,914
Release of exchange reserve B[Ol P& W (5,485)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2K 16,571
Total consideration, satisfies by cash URe 2 BRE 30,000

Net assets disposed of: HEZEEFHE:

Cash consideration REeERE 30,000
Bank balances and cash disposed of Tt EZRTEBRIES (6,124)
23,876
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36.SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share options scheme adopted on 14 January
2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) for the purposes of
recognition of significant contribution of and for the provision
of incentives to any directors, employees (whether full-time or
part-time), consultants, customers, suppliers, agents, partners
or advisors of or contractors to the Group or affiliates (“Eligible
Persons”). On 12 July 2011, the Company had granted
140,500,000 share options to directors, employees and other
affiliates under the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme has been terminated on 9
August 2011 and a new share option scheme (the “2011
Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company on 9
August 2011.

The 2011 Share Option is adopted for the same purpose of the
2002 Share Option Scheme.

Under the terms of the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the board
of directors of the Company may for a notional consideration
of HK$1 grant option to the Eligible Persons to subscribe for
shares in the Company at a price no less than the higher of
(i) the closing price of the Company's shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
of the option (which must be a business day); (ii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option. Options granted
under the New Share Scheme must be taken up within 28
business days from the date on which the offer is made by
returning a written acceptance of the offer signed by the
Eligible Persons together with the payment of HK$1 per option
(the “Acceptance Conditions”). Options granted and accepted
may be exercised at any time for 10 years commencing on the
date on which an option is accepted in accordance with the
Acceptance Conditions under the 2011 Share Option Scheme
(the “Option Period”). Options granted under the Scheme will
be exercisable in the Option Period notwithstanding that the
scheme period of the New Share Scheme does not prescribe
any minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised and has not specified that the exercise of an
option is subject to any performance target.

TMERZERBRAT « —T—=FFR

36. & I% #E

ARAER-_EZE_F—A+HWABHE
MERETE ([T - FE R
g2l) BEEEEASBABBEBARZ
ERES - EE (Twma2 Bk -
B &P HER REA GBAZK
BRASEBE ([EEBAL])FIE
H2EZEE WRFESIREEE R
—E——&E+A+=H AATERE
—EE_FHEREAENES EEX
H b B B N B #% H140,500,00017 BE IR
FE o

“ETR_FREREEERN T —F
NANBRILE MARRAR-T——%F
NANBEA— D ERETS ([=
T——FREEREFE]) -

—E - FRBREEDNZE-TT
“FEREE ZER B RA -

RIE—F— — FRBBRAER 8 Z F5 0 &
RAEZEGAURBAREBIETAA
BERATRLBERE UTPRORES
BEREER (BAREXER)ARAK
MEBRIIE A RERARZIWHE:
(NEZE2FWBEE AR A EE X AR
MR 8 B RERARZFHKET
B (ABSERE) - REHERAET
BB ZBERELANREEEBRAL
BB EEENEMNRNMG  ERRE
TR 1B T ([T ) 1T
EXNEAEF28EAEXANERN - &
BEEMNZBREIRE_T——F
BRI REMIGERABRES
REFH10FA ([BRERE])BERTT
15 - RIBET BRI 2 B AR AN B g
IR TTIE - 48 & # R B At 8 L AR
ERBENTEAZZEREH TE
BETEBREALZIEMRIRA

i
=
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36.

152

SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme cannot exceed 10% (the “Limit”) of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of adoption of the
2011 Share Option Scheme, excluding any options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the 2011 Share Option Scheme

and any other share option schemes.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from the time to
time. Option will not be granted to any Eligible Persons if the
exercise in full of all options, including any unexercised options
and shares already issued under all previous option granted,
would in the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such further grant enable that relevant Eligible Person to have
shares exceeding 1% of the issued shares of the Company for
the time being unless separate approval by the shareholders in
general meeting is obtained.

At 31 March 2013, the number of shares in respect of which
share options granted and remained outstanding under the
2002 Share Options Scheme was 131,500,000, representing
3.39% of the shares of the Company in issue at the reporting
date.

36. B E (48)

RE-_ZF——FEREFIEREZ
PrEBREETRER BT ZRNE
AREZTABEARRNEA—-FT——
FHEREASZEDBHITRAZ10%
(TRERBE-T——FBERETEIR
R H b B A R 8] 2 (R K2
Ef ) ([ER]) -

RIFET B R AR FHE R E A0 B A i T 2
BRI Z A RARITE 2 BRAEEEITE
KAl THRITZBEDER REZEHATSE
BN TR AR Z30% © Wik
EERBRZE-—FSETZEHZ12
EABEEmITEEAERE (BFEE
AEARITEZBRERREMEETE
Rz BREMBT RN ) ERER
BEBALTHAARRER ZC#HT
BOE®1% IERES TR TE
AAERAL  BRIFERBRAE LB
BRRZ1THE  RIBHISN -

RZE—=F=HA=+—H BRiBE
—ET -_FEREERE MR
2 BB #E 2 IR 1 & B /131,500,000
R AEARARINBE BB ETRG
3.39% °
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36.SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 36. 1B IR FE (&)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows: BN ERMIBREZFBFOAT

Number of share option

BREHA
Closing Outstanding Outstanding
price of the and  Reallocation and
Exercisable Fair Company's exercisable of categories Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled  exercisable
Date of Exercisable price value at shareat  at 1 April during during during during during  at 31 March
Grant period per share  grant date grant date 2012 the year the year the year the year the year 2013
)iy
S -%-=%
—E-CF =f
ARERG  EA-B SiSH
REHAM RELAM HATE  FREHR RER RER RER WRTE
RHBH TS BREE 22FE  2UWEE RUEGE 2REN  REARY xd P3¢ #¥ RUBTR
HK$ HK$ HK$ (note)
BT BT BT (Hi)
Category 1:
Rl
Directors 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 0.0578 0.071 84,500,000 20,000,000 - - (7,000,000) - 97,500,000
22 July 2021
% = =
tA+=H tA+=R%
—E--F
tA=+=A
Category 2:
BRIz
Employees 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 0.0578 0.071 24,000,000 = = - (2,000,000) - 22,000,000
22 July 2021
=] = =
tA+=H tA+=R%
—E--F
tA=+=A
Category 3:
BA=:
Other affiliates 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 0.0578 0.071 32,000,000  (20,000,000) = = = - 12,000,000
22 July 2021
EHEAR —E--F —T—fF
tA+=H tA+=R%
—E--F
tA=+=A
Total all categories
iR bl 8 140,500,000 = = - (9,000,000) - 131,500,000
Note: Due to the appointment of Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong and Mr. Wiz ARR_ZE—Z—FtASAR=ZF
Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony as the directors of the Company —Z—F+ATRBEDREERR K
on 6 July 2012 and 16 October 2012 respectively, the share SEERGRBRRBEERERARRIES
option granted to them under the category of “Other RZE——F LA T+-HRE[Et
affiliates” on 12 July 2011 was reallocated to the category of B AR 2R TS 2 ERE
“Directors”. EEMOEEEER]H5-
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36.

37.

38.
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 March 2012 were priced using the Trinomial model.
The inputs into the model were as follow:

36.

BRE (E)

REBE-_ZT——F=A=1+—HItFE
ZHBRE A ETER =R
FEEAEE ZEAZHBABEBDNT :

Share option type

2002 Share Option Scheme
BREES
—EF-_FERENE

Grant date share price R AERRE HK$0.0717%8 7T
Exercise price IEE HK$0.071/8 7T
Expected volatility T8 HA K 1R 78.743%
Expected option life T HA B Ak 4 A 10 years4F
Dividend yield fix B & 0%
Risk-free interest rate 12 3 g A1) & 2.796%
RESERVES 37.f#&
Details of the movements of the Group'’s reserves are set out in AEEREEBFBEHINESNEZE
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 51. SEREBE-
Details of the movements of the Company's reserves are set AAGHEEDFREHRREG S M BR
out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements. M43 -
TR A
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 38. E A I
The Group as lessee AEBERERBEA
2013 2012
—_g—-= —ET—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
Within one year —FLA 1,813 793
In the second year REZER - 1,177
1,813 1,970

A lease is negotiated for remaining 1 year (2012: 2 years) and
rentals of office premises are fixed throughout the lease term.

HOBRERBT—F(ZT—_%F:
ME) MBEAENEERAAZEESE

E °

Asia Resources Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2013



39

40.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #EZ—=%

. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any
outstanding capital commitments for both 2012 and 2013.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group's qualifying employees in Hong Kong participate in
the Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF”) in Hong Kong. The
assets of the MPF are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of trustee. The Group and each of
the employees make monthly mandatory contributions to the
MPF scheme.

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income of HK$3,445,000 (2012:
HK$3,403,000) represents contributions payable to these plans

by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

TMERZERBRAT « —T—=FFR

40.

wr & B T R R B R

—=FZ A=+ —ALEE

BRI

RBEHAR AEBR T ——F K-
T — = F B AR EE 2B A

£ o

R K48 A 5T 8

K%E%%%Zéﬁ%ﬁé%ﬁ%
2%%%@%@“%%@”%%

%ﬂ2§ﬁﬁ$ﬁlZ§F%
ﬁﬁ HEZAAZHZESER A%
BrkENEETARMIHERTRES
FTEl -

mﬁ#

$IW%“TZEEE$I&H“*

ZBRE R RKENGTEIKE - B
NG MWLW@ﬂ+%@HE%%

ETADLL 2B AERERN 2 &
& AKBEHRAKEMNGE 2HE—FE
A EVET B 1E PR K

FETHABRERANERZERX
#3,445,0008 0 (=& — = & :
3,403,000/ 7T ) i A BEliRET &4 A
EEZE REHMNZEFTE 2 HRK
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41.

156

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated
on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Save as
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
details of transactions between the Group and other related

parties are disclosed below.
Transactions

During the year, group entities entered into the following

related party transactions:

MBEAEIRS

ARBEREMBRR (KFIDARFZ
MEAL)BZRIERGARFEE
B ENAMERE R SR A T
BREMBAAREEIN AEEER
MWEEALTHZXZFBEHRELT

FRNEEERENATHEEALR
%.

2013 2012
—=E—= —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Management service income received WEL—fEEE AR Z
from a related company B2 AR 5 A - 172
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEEABZHM

The remuneration of key management personnel during the

year was as follows:

TEEBEABRFRAZHMAOT

2013 2012

—E-=F —E—_F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TATT

Short-term benefits 52 HITE A 880 1,211
Retirement benefit scheme RIRFE R FRETE 29 41
9209 1,252
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42.SUBSIDIARIES 42 Kt E A |

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries, all of which are wholly

and partially owned by the Company, at 31 March 2013 are as

follows:

Nominal value

RZE—=F=A=+—8 KRQ[2Z
WEBARIERARRIZE RIS HER

HEBOT:

of issued Proportion
Place of and fully ownership
incorporation or paid share/ interest
establishment/ registered held by
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company Principal activity
AR SRR, ERTRAR ARAFAEZ
BB 2 R A 8 R R RAEE SMEL FEEESLS FEEHR
China Value Assets Limited British Virgin Islands us$1 100%  Investment holding
(note a) (ffita) EBRAEE [E REZER
Merit Development Limited British Virgin Islands us$1 100%  Investment holding
(note a) (ffita) EBRAEE [E REZER
Bestime Systems Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100%  Investment holding
EBRAEE [E REZER
Billion Source Investments British Virgin Islands us$2 100%  Investment holding
Limited EBRAEE 2ETT REZER
Infinite Nature Limited British Virgin Island us$1 100%  Investment holding
EBRAEE (E REZER
Man Lee Management Hong Kong HK$2 100%  Management services
Limited N 28T B RS
Silver Epoch Investments British Virgin Islands us$1 100%  Investment holding
Limited EBRAEE (E REZER
Value Brilliant Investments British Virgin Islands US$30,000 100%  Investment holding
Limited RBRAES 30,0003 7T REER

TMERZERBERAT « —T—=FFR
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42.SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

HE-F—=F=A=—AIFF

42. B~ E (&)

Nominal value

of issued Proportion
Place of and fully ownership
incorporation or paid share/ interest
establishment/ registered held by
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company Principal activity
HMRIBAL, ERTRBRE FRAKHEZ
MY A B & B R R BRAEE ZMEL REEERLH TBER
MEERZEEAR AR (Siping PRC RMB55,350,000 100%  Manufacture and sales
Ju Neng Medicine Industry of pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.) (note b) Products
MFEEEXARAA ] AR #55,350,0007C RENHEER
(Htitb)
Tian Sheng Resources British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100%  Investment holding
Development Limited REETHES 50,0003 7T ®EER
AEEERFAEERAR
Khudebold LLC Mongolia Us$100,000 100%  Exploration of iron ore
e 100,000 7T RS E
Mighty Kingdom Investments  British Virgin Islands US$1 100%  Investment holding
Limited (note d) (#/itd) HRERXES (E REEKR
PT. Dampar Golden Indonesia USD 250,000 55%  Trading of iron sand
International e 250,000 7T BEHD
High Legend International British Virgin Islands US$1 100%  Investment holding
Limited RBRAES 1% REEKR
Legend Ace Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100%  Investment holding
RBRAES 1% REEKR
PT. Asia Resources Sejahtera  Indonesia - 55%  Dormant
e R
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42.SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

wr & B T R R B R

BE-F—=F=A=—AIFE

2. B~ E (&)

Nominal value

of issued Proportion
Place of and fully ownership
incorporation or paid share/ interest
establishment/ registered held by
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company Principal activity
MRS RL ERITRHARE AAAFEZ
MELRER 1 3t B BAMEE SFMER FEEEZEH FTEEH
PT. Asia Resources Patra Indonesia - 46.75%  Dormant
(note d) (Hfitd) Hfe FRmER
Conmet International Real British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100%  Investment holding
Estate Limited (note ¢) HBRLHS 50,0003 7T BEER
(Hfetc)
MMEEESHERAT PRC RMB 15,000,000 100%  Dormant
(note b and ¢) hE AR K
(Hiatbkc) 15,000,0007T
PT. Dampar Golden British Virgin Islands us$100 100%  Dormant
International Limited
HBEZHES 100% 7T FmER
Notes: HiaE -
(@)  The subsidiaries are directly held by the Company. (a) ZEMBRARBEARAEEREE-

(b)  The subsidiaries were a wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in the PRC.

(c)  The subsidiaries were acquired during the reporting period.

(d)  The Group holds the majority equity interest in the subsidiary

and maintain the control over the subsidiary.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at

the end of the year, or at any time during the year.

TMERZERBRAT « —T—=FFR

BRI PNCIVE Y NS D v N
B

ZEHBARC R ME R AR K-

N S ES R AR VNG PPN (5
REEE N0 M F5 B2 P B 1 B 2 A
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43. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION INFORMATION

OF THE COMPANY

Summarised statement of financial position information of the

S

43. "R B 2 AR R E R

ARARBERR A BRRAKRER

Company at the end of the reporting period includes: HERE:
2013 2012
—E—= —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interests in subsidiaries LN 3 106,500 106,500

Prepayments, deposits and other TR AR - R K E h FE Uk

receivables BRI 100 100
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note ;) F&UFt B A B (H7:27) 297,889 486,980
Bank balances and cash RIT&EBRNIR S 43,998 70,243
448,487 663,823
Amount due to subsidiaries (note i) &P B R RIFRIA (K7t ) (17,354) (17,359)
Other payables and accruals EEMER N ESTER (1,182) (1,162)
Convertible notes Al R R iE (230,569) (206,210)
Net assets BEFE 199,382 439,092
Share capital (note 32) BRAS (HfiE32) 193,937 193,937
Reserves fH 5,445 245,155
Total equity WA 199,382 439,092

Loss of the Company for current year amounted to
approximately HK$31,691,000 (2012: HK$8,767,000).

Notes:

KRBRAFE 2 E1E4 431,691,000
T (=T ——-%:8,767,000/8 7T ) °

(i) Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
recoverable on demand.

(i) Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.
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(i) ERIEARRELERR 2SR

(i) ENMEARRELEER 28R
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= = B § SE |
43.SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF 43. 782 8] 2 B R R 3k E R
==
FINANCIAL POSITION INFORMATION WE (&)
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Share
Share Share option Translation Special  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
& R4 & E BRERE ELfwE KhIGE 2 ER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THET THET TEL TET
At 1 April 2011 RZE——F@A—A 184,937 728,785 = 27 180,030 (672,568) 421,211
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - - - (8,767) (8,767)
Other comprehensive AFEEEMRERS
expenses for the year - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive expenses 7\ [ 48 2 B 57
for the year - - - - - (8,767) (8,767)
Conversion of convertible B BRREEARR
notes into shares 9,000 9,527 - - - - 18,527
Share-based payment VAR 3 A ERE 2 SRS
expenses - - 8,121 - - - 8,121
At 31 March 2012 and RZZ-—-F
1 April 2012 =A=+—-Bk
“T--4mA—H 193,937 738,312 8,121 27 180,030 (681,335) 439,092
Loss for the year AFEER - - - - - (239,710) (239,710)
Other comprehensive AEFEMRERT
expenses for the year - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive expenses A% £ 48 2 B3
for the year - - - - - (239,710) (239,710)
Lapse of share option BRI R - - (520) - - 520 =
At 31 March 2013 R=B-=%
=A=+-H 193,937 738,312 7,601 27 180,030 (920,525) 199,382
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46.
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DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at
as 31 March 2013.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

The directors proposed to effect to which every 25 issued and
unissued share of HK$0.05 each in the share capital of the
Company will be consolidated (the “Share Consolidation”) into
one consolidated share of HK$1.25 each (the “Consolidated
Share”).
paid up share capital of the Company be reduced (the “Capital

Following the Share Consolidation, the issued and

Reduction”) by cancelling the paid-up capital to the extent
of HK$1.00 on each of the Consolidated Share in issue so
that each issued Consolidated Share of HK$1.25 each of the
Company be treated as one fully paid-up share of HK$0.25
par value each (“Reduced Share(s)”) in the share capital of
the Company and any liability of the holders of such shares to
make any further contribution to the capital thereby cancelled
be made available for issue of new shares of the Company.
Immediately following the Capital Reduction, each authorised
but unissued share of the Company of par value of HK$1.25
each shall be sub-divided into five Reduced Shares of par
value of HK$0.25 each (“Share Subdivision”). The Share
Consolidation, Share Reduction and Share Subdivision was
passed by shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting on 31 May 2013 and will be effective on 3 June
2013.

44,

45.

46.

Iz 2

EETEZZRNEBEE T —=F=A
=+ HLEFEZEMEE (ZF—=
FifE) o

FREE
RZE—=F=A=+—"8 x£EW
EAMEBEAKAEE

BEHRREE

EERERARRRAT B2 ERE
H0.058 L2 B BT RARBEITRMDE
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47.

48.

49.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group has entered
the following non-cash investing activities which are not
reflected in the consolidated statement of cash flows:

- the Group has acquired Conmet International through
the share transfer agreement as details stated in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statement, the
consideration of the Transfer was to offset part of the
Outstanding Balance set out in note 34 for an amount of
approximately HK$40,988,000.

COMPARATIVE

Certain comparative amounts have been restated to conform

with the current year’s presentation.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June
2013.
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Financial Summary

B 95 4 &=

Year ended 31 March BEZ=RA=+—HLEE

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—EENF ZE-FTF ZET——F —T——_F |ZB—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FATT FATT FAET FATT FExT
Results E4
Revenue A 167,718 135,320 157,929 113,586 111,957
Profit/(loss) before tax MEE R R (EE) (19,030) (70,343) (45,269)  (155,374) 199,320
Tax credit/(charge) BMEER, () (2,094) 63 - (202) -
Profit/(loss) for the year AREEEF, (EiE) (21,124) (70,280) (45,269)  (155,576) 199,320
Attributable to: JEAE
Equity holders of the RATIERFAA
Company (21,124) (70,280) (45,061)  (154,276)| (197,967)
Minority interests VYR EER - - (208) (1,300) (1,353)
(21,124) (70,280) (45,269)  (155,576)| (199,320)
As at 31 March R=8=+—H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—EENF ZEFTF —FT——F —T——F|ZB—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETT TATT FH&T FATT FH& T
Assets and liabilities EENEE
Total assets BEBE 500,053 694,403 1,267,800 998,681 849,351
Total liabilities BERE (148,499)  (256,150)  (421,917)  (282,855)| (331,766)
Shareholders’ funds [ERE S 351,554 438,253 586,842 458,085 261,022
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